
 

 

OPEN MEETING 
 

REGULAR OPEN MEETING OF THE UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION 

 
Tuesday, March 8, 2022- 9:30 a.m. 
BOARD ROOM/VIRTUAL MEETING 

Laguna Woods Village Community Center, 24351 El Toro Road, 
Laguna Woods, California 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA 

The purpose of this meeting is to conduct the regular United Mutual Board Meeting in accordance with 
Civil Code §4930 and was hereby noticed in accordance with Civil Code §4920 

 
 

1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum – President Liberatore 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Director English 
 

3. Acknowledge Media 
 

4. Approval of Agenda 
 

5. Approval of the Meeting Minutes 
a. January 27, 2022 – Agenda Prep Meeting 
b. February 8, 2022 – Regular Open Session  

 
6. Report of Chair 

 
7. VMS Board Update – Director Robledo 

 
8. Open Forum (Three Minutes per Speaker) - At this time Members only may address the 

Board of Directors regarding items not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of this Board of 
Directors.  The board reserves the right to limit the total amount of time allotted for the Open 
Forum to thirty minutes. A member may speak only once during the forum. Speakers may not 
give their time to other people, no audio or video recording by attendees, and no rude or 
threatening comments. Members can attend the meeting by joining the Zoom link 
https://zoom.us/j/95563492734 or call 1 (669) 900-6833 or email meeting@vmsinc.org to have 
your message read during the Open Forum. 
 

9. Responses to Open Forum Speakers  
 

10. CEO Report 
a. Canary Island Pine Tree Project – Kurt Wiemann, Landscaping Services 

Director  
 

11. Consent Calendar – All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are 

https://zoom.us/j/95563492734
mailto:meeting@vmsinc.org


United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Board of Directors Regular Open 
March 8, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 

 

recommended for action by committees and will be enacted by the Board by one 
motion. In the event that an item is removed from the Consent Calendar by Members 
of the Board, such item(s) shall be the subject of further discussion and action by the 
Board. 
a. Consistent with its statutory obligations under Civil Code §5501, a subcommittee 

of the board consisting of the Treasurer and at least one other board member 
reviewed the United Laguna Woods Mutual preliminary financials for the month 
of December 2021, such review is hereby ratified. 
 

b. Consistent with its statutory obligations under Civil Code §5501, a subcommittee 
of the board consisting of the Treasurer and at least one other board member 
reviewed the United Laguna Woods Mutual preliminary financials for the month 
of January 2022, such review is hereby ratified. 

 
c. Recommendation from the Finance Committee 

1. Approve a Resolution for Recording a Lien against Member ID # 947-407-84 
2. Approve a Resolution for Recording a Lien against Member ID # 947-365-16 
3. Approve a Resolution for Recording a Lien against Member ID # 947-380-59 

 
d. Recommendation from the Landscape Committee 
 1. Recommend to Deny Landscape Revision Request: 880-B Via Mendoza 
 
e. Recommendation from the Architectural Controls & Standards Committee  

1. Recommend to Approve a Variance Request: 81-C Calle Aragon (Madrid,4) 
Room Addition on the Existing Exclusive Area Front Patio, Bathroom 
Addition, and Enclosed Atrium 
 

f. Approve the Review of the United Sub-Leasing and Transfer of Trust 
Documents Approved in February 2022, and such review is hereby ratified.  

 
12. Unfinished Business 

a. Recommendation from the Architectural Controls & Standards Committee 
  1. Recommend to Consider Variance Extension Request: 729-D Avenida Majorca 
 
b. Discuss and Consider Amendment to Clutter Policy  

 
13. New Business  

a. Discuss and Consider Appointments to GRF Insurance Ad Hoc Committee 
b. Discuss and Consider Composition of United M&C Committee (oral discussion) 
c. Entertain a Motion to Approve the 2022 Annual Election Schedule and 

Approve a Resolution Appointing the Inspector of Elections. 
 

14. Director Comments (Two minutes per director) 
 

15. Committee Reports 
a. Report of the Finance Committee / Financial Report – Director Asgari. The 

Committee met on February 22, 2022; next meeting March 29, 2022, at 1:30 
p.m. in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

 



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Board of Directors Regular Open 
March 8, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 

 

(1) Treasurer’s Report 
(2) United Finance Committee Report 
(3) Resales/Leasing Reports 

 
b. Report of the Architectural Control and Standards Committee – President 

Liberatore. The Committee met on February 17, 2022; next meeting March 17, 
2022, at 9:30 a.m. in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

 
c. Report of Member Hearings Committee – Director Ardani. The Committee met 

on February 24, 2022; next meeting March 24, 2022, 9:00 a.m. in the Board 
Room and as a virtual meeting. 

 
d. Report of the Governing Documents Review Committee – Director Blackwell. 

The Committee met on February 17, 2022; next meeting March 17, 2022, 1:30 
p.m. in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 
 

e. Report of the Landscape Committee – Director Casey. The Committee met on 
February 10, 2022; next meeting March 10, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. in the Board Room 
and as a virtual meeting. 

 
f. Report of the Maintenance & Construction Committee – Director English. The 

Committee met on February 23, 2022; next meeting April 27, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. 
in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

 
g. Report of the United Resident Advisory Committee – Director Lee.  The 

committee met on January 13, 2022; next meeting March 10, 2022, at 4:00 
p.m. in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

 
16. GRF Committee Highlights 

h. Report of the GRF Finance Committee – Director Asgari. The Committee met 
on February 16, 2022; next meeting April 20, 2022, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board 
Room and as a virtual meeting. 

i. Report of the GRF Strategic Planning Committee— Director Torng. The 
Committee met on March 7, 2022; next meeting May 2, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. in 
the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

 
j. Report of the Community Activities Committee – Director Blackwell. The 

committee met on January 13, 2022; next meeting March 10, 2022, at 1:30 
p.m. in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 
 
(1)  Equestrian Center Ad Hoc Committee -- The Committee met on January 

26, 2022; next meeting March 30, 2022, at 1:00 p.m. in the Board Room 
and as a virtual meeting. 

 
k. Report of the GRF Landscape Committee – Director Casey. The Committee 

met on December 8, 2021; next meeting March 9, 2022, at 1:30 p.m. as a virtual 
meeting. 



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Board of Directors Regular Open 
March 8, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 

 

l. Report of the GRF Maintenance & Construction Committee – Director 
Achrekar. The Committee met on February 9, 2022; next meeting April 13, 
2022, at 9:30 a.m. in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

(1) Clubhouse (Facilities) Ad Hoc Committee – Director Casey. The Ad Hoc 
Committee met January 28, 2022; next meeting TBA. 

m. Report of the Media and Communication Committee – Director Ardani. The 
Committee met on February 22, 2022; next meeting March 21, 2022, at 1:30 
p.m. in the Board Room and as a        virtual meeting. 

n. Report of the Mobility and Vehicles Committee – Director Bastani. The 
Committee met on February 2, 2022; next meeting April 6, 2022, 1:30 p.m. in 
the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

o. Report of the Security and Community Access Committee – Director Bastani. 
The Committee met on February 28, 2022; next meeting April 25, 2022, at 1:30 
p.m. in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

p. Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings – Director Ardani. The Hearings were 
held on February 16, 2022; next hearings will be held March 16, 2022, at 9:00 
a.m. as a virtual meeting. 

q. Report of the Disaster Preparedness Task Force – Director Casey. The Task 
Force met on January 25, 2022; next meeting March 29, 2022, at 9:30 in the 
Board Room a.m. and as a virtual meeting. 

r. Information Technology Advisory Committee – Director Casey. The Committee 
met on March 4, 2022; next meeting March 11, 2022, at 1:30 p.m.  

 
17. Future Agenda Items – All matters listed under Future Agenda Items are Resolutions 

on 28-day public review or items for a future Board Meetings. No action will be taken 
by the Board on these agenda items at this meeting. 

 
18. Recess - At this time, the Meeting will recess for lunch and reconvene to Executive 

Session to discuss the following matters per California Civil Code §4935. 
 
CLOSED SESSION NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Approval of Agenda 
Approval of the Following Meeting Minutes; 

(a) February 8, 2022—Regular Closed Session 
Discuss and Consider Member Disciplinary Matters   
Discuss Personnel Matters 
Discuss and Consider Contractual Matters 
Discuss             and Consider Legal and Litigation Matters 

 
19. Adjourn 



DocuSign Envelope ID: FA8D83EC-737A-45F7-BECE-E35B2101D483 
 

 

 

 

OPEN SESSION 
 

MINUTES OF THE AGENDA PREP MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL, 

A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION 

Thursday, January 27, 2022, at 2:00 p.m. 
24351 El Toro Road, Laguna Woods, California 

WILLOW ROOM/VIRTUAL MEETING 

The purpose of this meeting is to discuss items for the regular board meeting agenda 
 

Directors Present: Anthony Liberatore, Andre Torng, Neda Ardani, Pat English, 
Maggie Blackwell, Pearl Lee, Diane Casey, Lenny Ross, Azar 
Asgari, Cash Achrekar 

 
Directors Absent: Reza Bastani 

 
Staff Present: Jeff Parker, Siobhan Foster, Grant Schultz, Michelle Estrada, 

Makayla Thomas 
 

Others Present: Elsie Addington 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order / Establish Quorum – President Liberatore 
 

President Liberatore called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. and established that 
a quorum was present. 

 
2. Approval of the Agenda 

 
Hearing no objection, the agenda was passed without objection. 

 
3. Discuss and Consider Item for the United Board Regular Meeting (open and 

closed sessions) on February 8, 2022 
 

The board discussed the committee assignments. 
 

The board agreed unanimously to revise the Architectural Committee list to place 
Director Liberatore as the chair. Director Skillman resigned as an advisor. The 
full committee list will be up for approval by the board at their January 8, 2022 
meeting. 

Agenda Item #5a 
Page 1 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: FA8D83EC-737A-45F7-BECE-E35B2101D483 
 

United Board Agenda Prep Meeting (Open) 
January 27, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 

 
The board agreed unanimously to revise the Finance Committee list to place 
Director Asgari as the chair. The full committee list will be up for approval by the 
board at their January 8, 2022 meeting. 

 
The board agreed unanimously to revise the Governing Documents Committee 
list to place Director Blackwell as the chair. The full committee list will be up for 
approval by the board at their January 8, 2022 meeting. 

 
The board agreed unanimously to revise the Landscape Committee list to place 
Director Casey as the chair. The full committee list will be up for approval by the 
board at their January 8, 2022 meeting. 

 
The board agreed unanimously to revise the Maintenance & Construction 
Committee list to place Director English as the chair. The full committee list will 
be up for approval by the board at their January 8, 2022 meeting. 

 
The board agreed unanimously to revise the Members Hearing Committee list to 
place Director Ardani as the chair. The full committee list will be up for approval 
by the board at their January 8, 2022 meeting. 

 
The board agreed unanimously to revise the New Resident Orientation 
Committee list to place Director Blackwell as the chair. The full committee list will 
be up for approval by the board at their January 8, 2022 meeting. 

 
The board agreed unanimously to revise the Resident Advisory Committee list to 
place Director Lee as the chair. The full committee list will be up for approval by 
the board at their January 8, 2022 meeting. 

 
The board agreed unanimously to revise the GRF Community Activities 
Committee list to place Director Casey as a member. The full committee list will 
be up for approval by the board at their January 8, 2022 meeting. 

 
The board agreed unanimously to revise the GRF Finance Committee list to 
place Director English as a member and Director Casey as an alternate. The full 
committee list will be up for approval by the board at their January 8, 2022 
meeting. 

 
The board agreed unanimously to revise the GRF Mobility and Vehicles 
Committee list to place Director Ross as a member in place of Director Lee. The 
full committee list will be up for approval by the board at their January 8, 2022 
meeting. 

 
The board discussed items for the open and closed agendas for the January 8, 
2022 meeting. 

 
4. Director Comments 

Agenda Item #5a 
Page 2 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: FA8D83EC-737A-45F7-BECE-E35B2101D483 
 

United Board Agenda Prep Meeting (Open) 
January 27, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 

 

• Director Torng commented on the need for a Strategic Planning Committee for 
United as a monitoring system. 

 
5. Adjournment 

President Liberatore adjourned the meeting at 3:26 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Neda Ardani, Secretary of the Board 
United Mutual Laguna Woods 

 
 

Agenda Item #5a 
Page 3 of 4



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #5a 
Page 4 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3E2EF8C-6C65-4794-8C06-8DBC96E42167 
 

 

 

 
 

OPEN MEETING 

MINUTES OF THE OPEN MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL A 

CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION 
 

Tuesday, February 8, 2022- 9:30 a.m. 
Open Session, Virtual Meeting 

24351 El Toro Road, Laguna Woods, California 
 
 

Directors Present: Anthony Liberatore, Pearl Lee, Pat English, Neda Ardani, Cash 
Achrekar, Azar Asgari, Diane Casey, Andre Torng, Maggie Blackwell, 
Lenny Ross 

 
Directors Absent: Reza Bastani 

 
Staff Present: CEO Siobhan Foster, Grant Schultz, Michelle Estrada, Makayla 

Thomas 
 

Others Present: Jeff Beaumont Esq. 
VMS: Cynthia Rupert 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order/Establish Quorum 
President Liberatore called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. and acknowledged that a 
quorum was present. 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
Director English led the pledge of allegiance. 

 
3. Acknowledge Media 
The Village Television Camera Crew, by way of remote cameras, was acknowledged as 
present. 

 
4. Approval of Agenda 
President Liberatore asked if there were any changes to the agenda. 

 
Director Casey made a motion to approve the agenda. Director Ross seconded the motion. 

Director Torng added Discuss United Strategic Planning Committee to item 13 New Business. 

Hearing no objection, the board approved the agenda as amended unanimously. 

5. Approval of Minutes 

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 1 of 14



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3E2EF8C-6C65-4794-8C06-8DBC96E42167 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 2 of 13 

 

 

a. December 30, 2021 – Agenda Prep Meeting 
President Liberatore asked for a motion to approve the December 30, 2021 – Agenda Prep 
Meeting Minutes. 

 
Director Blackwell made a motion to approve the December 30, 2021 – Agenda Prep Meeting 
Minutes. Director Ross seconded the motion. 

 
Hearing no objections, the December 30, 2021 – Agenda Prep Meeting Minutes were 
approved unanimously. 

 
b. January 11, 2022 – Regular Open Session 

 
Hearing no objections, the January 11, 2022 – Regular Open Session Minutes were 
approved unanimously 

 
6. Report of the Chair 
President Liberatore commented that Director Rupert will represent the board in the annual 
audit with KNPG. The GRF President is organizing a committee to review insurance 
industry for options in the community. 

Director Rupert joined the meeting at 10:06 a.m. 

THIS ITEM WAS PRESENTED AFTER ITEM 10 
7. VMS Board Update – Director Rupert 
Director Rupert provided a presentation on the following: 

• Key New Hires: 
o Corporate Secretary Michelle Estrada joined January 3rd. 
o General Services Director Robert Carroll joined January 17th. 
o Assistant Corporate Secretary Makayla Thomas joined January 24th. 

• Media & Communication Department – Key 2022 Initiatives. 
• VMS 2022 Goals and Activities – Corporate Control, Strategy, Talent, Risk 

Management, CEO Selection/Evaluation, Board Self-Assessment. 
 
Director Ross presented a chart the Percentage of Properties Closing 45 Days or Less Each 
Quarter. 

 
Director Rupert answered questions from the board. 

 
CEO Foster confirmed that NCB is scheduling a meeting between VMS and Fannie Mae. 

Discussion ensued among the Directors. 

8. Open Forum (Three Minutes per Speaker) 
At this time Members addressed the Board of Directors regarding items not on the agenda 

 
The following members made comments: 

• A member commented on security concerns near his home. He occasionally finds 
cut-off pieces of the barbwire from the wall in the cul-de-sac near gate1 and 

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 2 of 14



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3E2EF8C-6C65-4794-8C06-8DBC96E42167 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 3 of 13 

 

 

clubhouse 1. The wall is low and he would like shepherd’s crook installed. 
• A member commented additionally on the security concerns near the wall where 

his neighbor lives near clubhouse 1. 
• A member commented on water damage to the flooring in his unit. He stated that 

he received an initial response from the HOA and the flooring installation is 
incomplete. 

• A member thanked the Board for their service. He commented on the financing 
options restrictions on approval from lenders. 

• A member commented on the notification of a recent a water shut-off. She 
suggested that staff refrain from stapling notices to trees. 

• A member commented additionally on notification of the recent water shut-off and 
suggested that notification be sent via mail. 

9. Responses to Open Forum Speakers 
• Director Casey commented on finding solutions to security concerns and working 

with Maintenance and Construction. Siobhan may have information regarding 
moisture intrusion. Trees should not be utilized for stapling notifications. 

• Director Torng commented on outstanding work order requests and asked to 
review the report. He suggested giving a warning before the 3-minute time limit 
expires for open forum speakers. 

• Director Blackwell commented that staff should respond to these types of open 
forum speakers before directors respond. The Shepherd’s Crook Project will take 
a duration of several years. Fannie Mae does not accept loans from NCB and the 
board does not restrict financing from lenders. 

• CEO Foster commented that the Shepherd’s Crook Project is focusing on the area 
adjacent to building 761 in 2022. Staff has received training in posting emergency 
notification. Staff will contact the member who commented on water damage to his 
flooring. 

 
10. CEO Report 
CEO Siobhan Foster provided a presentation on the following topics: 
• New CEO approach to leading VMS – A commitment to excellence and dedication to 

service. 
• New structure in the General Manager Department: 

o Director of Operations – Carlos Rojas will oversee General Services, 
Landscaping Services, Security Services, and Maintenance and Construction. 

o Services Manager – Catherine Laster  will guide  key CEO Office  Services 
including Corporate Secretaries, Records Management, Community services. 

• New structure in the Financial Services Department: 
o Director of Financial Services – Steve Hormuth. 
o Assistant Director – Jose Campos will focus on financial planning and 

processes. 
• The new organizational chart is available on the Village website. 
• Trash collection and organic recycling update – CR&R will send a letter to residents 

this week to address transition challenges impacted by Covid-19. 
• The bulky item pickup is scheduled for Saturday, February 19th. 
• Residents are encouraged to contact CR&R directly for all trash-related questions. 

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 3 of 14



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3E2EF8C-6C65-4794-8C06-8DBC96E42167 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 4 of 13 

 

 
 

11. Consent Calendar 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are recommended for action by committees and 
will be enacted by the board by one motion. In the event that an item is removed from the Consent 
Calendar by members of the board, such item(s) shall be the subject of further discussion and 
action by the board. 

 
a. Consistent with its statutory obligations under Civil Code §5501, a subcommittee 

of the board consisting of the Treasurer and at least one other board member 
reviewed the United Laguna Woods Mutual preliminary financials for the monthof 
November 2021, such review is hereby ratified. 

 
b. Recommendation from the Finance Committee: 

(1) Approve a Resolution for Recording a Lien against Member ID #947-373-11 
 

RESOLUTION 01-22-04 
Recording of a Lien 

 
WHEREAS, Member ID 947-373-11; is currently delinquent to United 
Laguna Woods Mutual with regard to the monthly assessment; and 

 
WHEREAS, a Notice of Delinquent Assessment (Lien) will be filed upon 
adoption of this resolution following at least a majority vote of the Board 
(with no delegation of such action by the Board), acting in an open meeting, 
and for which the Board's vote is recorded in the minutes; 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, February 08, 2022, that 

the 
Board of Directors hereby approves the recording of a Lien for Member ID 
947-373-11 and; 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of 
this resolution. 

 
(2) Approve a Resolution for Recording a Lien against Member ID #947-405-25 

 
RESOLUTION 01-22-05 

Recording of a Lien 
 

WHEREAS, Member ID 947-405-25; is currently delinquent to United 
Laguna Woods Mutual with regard to the monthly assessment; and 

 
WHEREAS, a Notice of Delinquent Assessment (Lien) will be filed upon 
adoption of this resolution following at least a majority vote of the Board 
(with no delegation of such action by the Board), acting in an open meeting, 
and for which the Board's vote is recorded in the minutes; 

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 4 of 14



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3E2EF8C-6C65-4794-8C06-8DBC96E42167 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 5 of 13 

 

 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, February 08, 2022, that the 
Board of Directors hereby approves the recording of a Lien for Member ID 
947-405-25 and; 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of 
this resolution. 

 
(3) Approve a Resolution for a Notice of Sale Member ID #947-377-81 

 
RESOLUTION 01-22-06 

Initiate Foreclosure (Notice of Sale) 
 

RESOLVED, February 08, 2022 that the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation hereby authorizes initiation of foreclosure of a lien for 
delinquent assessments that has been validly recorded for parcel numbers 
947-377-81; and 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this 
resolution as written. 

 
 

c. Recommendation from the Architectural Control and Standards Committee 
(1) Variance – 2048-C: Approved for recommendation to the United Board 

 
RESOLUTION 01-22-07 

Variance Request 
 

WHEREAS, Mr. Conrad of 2048-C Avenida Sevilla, a Valencia style 
manor, is requesting Board approval of a variance for two 7’ high sliding 
glass doors into the atrium; and 

WHEREAS, a Neighborhood Awareness Notice was sent to Owners of 
affected units January 11, 2022, notifying them that an application to make 
an alteration to a neighboring unit had been made and that comments or 
objections could be made in writing to the Architectural Controls and 
Standards Committee or in person at the Architectural Controls and 
Standards Committee Meeting on January 20, 2022; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on February 8, 2022, the Board 
of Directors hereby approves the request to add two 7’ high sliding glass 
doors into the atrium; 

RESOLVED FURTHER, all costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, 
replacement or removal of the improvement, present and future, are the 
responsibility of the Property’s Member Owner at 2048-C Avenida Sevilla 

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 5 of 14



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3E2EF8C-6C65-4794-8C06-8DBC96E42167 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 6 of 13 

 

 

and all future Mutual members at 2048-C Avenida Sevilla; 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose 
of this resolution. 

 
d. Approve the Review of the United Sub-Leasing and Transfer of Trust Documents 

Approved in January 2022, and such review is hereby ratified. 
 
Hearing no objections, the consent calendar was approved unanimously. 

 
12. Unfinished Business 

 
a. Resolution to Update Committee Appointments 

 
Resolution 01-22-08 

United Laguna Woods Mutual Committee Appointments 
 

RESOLVED, February 8, 2022, that the following persons are hereby 
appointed to serve the Corporation in the following capacities: 

 
Architectural Control and Standards Committee 
Anthony Liberatore (Chair) 
Reza Bastani Cash Achrekar 
Non-Voting Advisors: Michael Mehrain, Juanita Skillman 

 

Finance Committee 
Azar Asgari, Chair 
Pat English (Chair) 
Lenny Ross 
Pearl Lee 
Advisor: Dick Rader 

 
Governing Documents Review Committee 
Maggie Blackwell (Chair) 
Diane Casey 
Reza Bastani 
Pearl Lee 
Advisor: Dick Rader, Juanita Skillman, Bevan Strom, Mary Stone 

 

Landscape Committee 
Diane Casey (Chair) 
Maggie Blackwell 
Pearl Lee 
Lenny Ross 
Advisors: Theresa Frost, Mike Peters, Annie Zipkin 

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 6 of 14



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3E2EF8C-6C65-4794-8C06-8DBC96E42167 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 7 of 13 

 

 
 

Maintenance and Construction Committee 
Pat English (Chair) 
Reza Bastani 
Anthony Liberatore 

Non-voting Advisor: Ken Deppe 
 

Members Hearing Committee 
Neda Ardani (Chair) 
Pearl Lee 
Maggie Blackwell 

New Resident Orientation 
Maggie Blackwell (Chair) 
Pearl Lee 
Cash Achrekar 

Resident Advisory Committee 
Pearl Lee (Chair) 
Diane Casey 
Maggie Blackwell 
Advisor: Nancy Lannon 

RESOLVE FURTHER that all directors are considered alternate members 
of each committee “Alternate.” Each Alternate may serve as a substitute for 
anotherdirector that is unable to attend a meeting (“Substitute”). Committee 
Member Alternates cannot substitute for more than two (2) consecutive 
meetings. This will allow any director to ask any other director to sit in 
their stead during a temporaryabsence or unavailability. Of course, we can 
modify this and structure this any way the Board feels is best. However, 
the concept is that the Board, in advance,will approve any director sitting 
on a committee on a temporary basis when necessary to fill in for another 
director. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER Resolution 01-21-58, adopted September 14, 
2021, is hereby superseded and canceled. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized, on behalf of the Corporation, to carry out this resolution. 

 
Resolution 01-22-09 

Golden Rain Foundation Committee Appointments 
 

RESOLVED, February 8, 2022, that in compliance with Article 7, Section 
7.3 of the Golden Rain Foundation Bylaws, adopted September 29, 2014, 
thefollowing persons are hereby appointed to serve on the committees of 
theGolden Rain Foundation: 

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 7 of 14



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3E2EF8C-6C65-4794-8C06-8DBC96E42167 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 8 of 13 

 

 
 
 

GRF Strategic Planning Committee 
Cash Achrekar 
Reza Bastani 
Diane Casey 
Anthony Liberatore, Alternate 

 
GRF Community Activities Committee 
Maggie Blackwell 
Diane Casey 
Pearl Lee 

 

GRF Finance 
Azar Asgari 
Pat English 
Diane Casey, Alternate 

GRF Landscape Committee 
Maggie Blackwell 
Diane Casey 

 
GRF Maintenance & Construction 
Cash Achrekar 
Anthony Liberatore 
Lenny Ross 

 
Clubhouses & Facilities Renovation Ad Hoc Committee 
Diane Casey 
Pat English 
Azar Asgari, Alternate 

 
GRF Media and Communications Committee 
Neda Ardani 
Maggie Blackwell 

 
GRF Mobility and Vehicles Committee 
Maggie Blackwell 
Lenny Ross 
Pearl Lee 

 
GRF Security and Community Access 
Reza Bastani 
Cash Achrekar 

 
Disaster Preparedness Task Force 
Diane Casey 
Anthony Liberatore 

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 8 of 14



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3E2EF8C-6C65-4794-8C06-8DBC96E42167 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 9 of 13 

 

 

Cash Achrekar, Alternate 
 

Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings 
Neda Ardani 
Anthony Liberatore 

 
Purchasing Ad Hoc Committee 
Anthony Liberatore 
Diane Casey 

 
Information Technology Advisory Committee 
Diane Casey 
Cash Achrekar 

 
Broadband Ad Hoc Committee 
Diane Casey 

 
Revenue Resources Ad Hoc Committee 
Diane Casey 
Azar Asgari 
Lenny Ross 

 
Equestrian Center Ad Hoc Committee 
Pat English 
Pearl Lee 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 01-21-59, adopted September 
14,2021,is hereby superseded and cancelled. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER, the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized, on behalf of the Corporation, to carry out this 
resolution. 

 
Director Casey made a motion to approve the Resolution to Update Committee Appointments. 
Director Ross seconded. 

 
President Liberatore called the motion to a vote and the motion passed 8-1-1. Director Torng 
opposed, Director Asgari abstained, Director Bastani was absent. 

 
b. Consistent with its statutory obligations under Civil Code §5501, a subcommittee of 

the board consisting of the Treasurer and at least one other board member 
reviewed the United Laguna Woods Mutual preliminary financials for the month of 
December 2021, such review is hereby ratified. 

 
Director Asgari commented that this item does not require discussion at this time. An update 
will be provided after the Finance meeting scheduled for February 10th. 

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 9 of 14



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3E2EF8C-6C65-4794-8C06-8DBC96E42167 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 10 of 13 

 

 
 

13. New Business – Discuss United Strategic Planning Committee 
Director Torng discussed the formation of a United Strategic Planning Committee. 

Legal Counsel answered questions from the board. 

Director Ross made a motion to discuss Strategic Planning during the last 2 hours of 
the March United Board Meeting – closed session. Director Casey seconded the motion. 

 
Discussion ensued among directors. 

 
Director Blackwell moved to amend the motion by removing the 2-hour time limit. 
Director Casey seconded the motion. 

 
President Liberatore called the amended motion to remove the 2-hour time limit to a 
vote and the motion passed 7-2-1. Director’s Ardani and English opposed, Director 
Torng abstained, Director Bastani was absent. 

 
Director Ross made a motion to discuss Strategic Planning during the March United 
Board Meeting – closed session. Director Casey seconded the motion. 

 
President Liberatore called the motion to a vote and the motion passed 8-2. Director’s 
English and Asgari opposed, Director Bastani was absent. 

 
Legal Counsel answered questions from the board. 

 
14. Director Comments (Two minutes per director) 

• Director Casey commented on the improvement of board meetings compared to 
previous meetings. 

• Director Ross commented on insurance, co-ops and property values. 
• Director English urged residents to attend the City Hall meeting regarding zoning 

properties near United. The meeting will take place February 9th at 2 p.m. 
• Director Asgari commented that one advantage to living in Laguna Woods Village 

is that it is a gated community. She would like CEO Foster to provide a report 
regarding the fences surrounding the community and safety of the residents. She 
asked that directors conduct themselves appropriately while speaking during 
meetings. 

• Director Achrekar confirmed he will attend the City Hall meeting tomorrow. 
• Director Lee commented on the prompt response she received from CR&R. She 

also commented on the safety concerns in regards to Director Asgari’s comment. 
• Director Blackwell commented that the fencing is on the M&C project log. Contact 

information was distributed to residents regarding insurance benefits. She 
commented on the relationship between the board and staff. 

• Director Ardani thanked the directors for the meeting. 
• Director Torng commented on reviewing the work orders report to ensure that staff 

is completing resident requests. He discussed the benefits of having a Strategic 
Planning Committee. 

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 10 of 14



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3E2EF8C-6C65-4794-8C06-8DBC96E42167 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 11 of 13 

 

 
 

15. Committee Reports 
a. Report of the Finance Committee / Financial Report – Director Asgari. The 

Committee met on January 25, 2022; next meeting February 22, 2022, at 1:30 
p.m. in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

 
(1) Treasurer’s Report 
(2) United Finance Committee Report 
(3) Resales/Leasing Reports 

 
b. Report of the Architectural Control and Standards Committee – President 

Liberatore. The Committee met on January 20, 2022; next meeting February 
17, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

 
c. Report of Member Hearings Committee – Director Ardani. The Committee met 

on January 27, 2022; next meeting February 24, 2022, 9:00 a.m. in the Board 
Room and as a virtual meeting. 

 
d. Report of the Governing Documents Review Committee – Director Blackwell. 

The Committee met on January 20, 2022; next meeting February 17, 2022, 
1:30 p.m. as a virtual meeting. 

 
e. Report of the Landscape Committee – Director Casey. The Committee met on 

December 9, 2021; next meeting February 10, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. as a virtual 
meeting. 

 
f. Report of the Maintenance & Construction Committee – Director English. The 

Committee met on January 3, 2022; next meeting February 23, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. 
as a virtual meeting. 

 
g. Report of the United Resident Advisory Committee – Director Lee. The 

committee met on January 13, 2022; next meeting March 10, 2022, at 4:00 
p.m. in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

 
16. GRF Committee Highlights 

h. Report of the GRF Finance Committee – Director Asgari. The Committee met 
on January 28, 2022; next meeting February 16, 2022, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board 
Room and as a virtual meeting. 

i. Report of the GRF Strategic Planning Committee— Director Torng. The 
Committee met on January 10, 2022; next meeting March 7, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. 
in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

j. Report of the Community Activities Committee – Director Blackwell. The 
committee met on January 13, 2022; next meeting February 10, 2022, at 1:30 
p.m. as a virtual meeting. 

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 11 of 14



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3E2EF8C-6C65-4794-8C06-8DBC96E42167 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 12 of 13 

 

 

(1) Equestrian Center Ad Hoc Committee – Director English. The 
Committee met on January 26, 2022; next meeting March 30, 2022, at 
1:00 p.m. in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

 
k. Report of the GRF Landscape Committee – Director Casey. The Committee 

met on December 8, 2021; next meeting March 9, 2022, at 1:30 p.m. as a virtual 
meeting. 

l. Report of the GRF Maintenance & Construction Committee – Director 
Achrekar. The Committee met on December 8, 2021; next meeting February 
9, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. as a virtual meeting. 

(2) Clubhouse (Facilities) Ad Hoc Committee – Director Casey. The Ad Hoc 
Committee met on January 28, 2022; next meeting March 10, 2022. 

m. Report of the Media and Communication Committee – Director Ardani. The 
Committee met on January 17, 2022; next meeting February 22, 2022, at 9:00 
a.m. as a virtual meeting. 

n. Report of the Mobility and Vehicles Committee – Director Blackwell. The 
Committee met on February 2, 2022; next meeting April 6, 2022, at 1:30 p.m. 
in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

o. Report of the Security and Community Access Committee – Director 
Liberatore. The Committee met on October 25, 2021; next meeting February 
28, 2022, at 1:30 p.m. as a virtual meeting. 

p. Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings – Director Ardani. The Hearings were 
held on January 19, 2022; next hearings will be held February 16, 2022, at 
9:00 a.m. as a virtual meeting. 

q. Report of the Disaster Preparedness Task Force – Director Casey. The Task 
Force met on January 25, 2022; next meeting March 29, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. in 
the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

r. Information Technology Advisory Committee – Director Casey. The last 
meeting was February 4, 2022. Next meeting is a Special Corporate Members 
Meeting on February 11, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. as a virtual meeting. 

 

17. Future Agenda Items – None 
Director Blackwell add item from last minutes 5b 7/10 to March Open meeting 

 
18. Recess - At this time the meeting will recess for lunch and reconvene to Closed 

Session to discuss the following matters per California Civil Code §4935. 

The meeting recessed at 12:55 p.m. into the Closed Session. 
 

Summary of Previous Closed Session Meetings per Civil Code Section §4935 
During the January 11, 2022, Regular Closed Session, the Board: 

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 12 of 14



DocuSign Envelope ID: F3E2EF8C-6C65-4794-8C06-8DBC96E42167 

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2022 
Page 13 of 13 

 

 

Approval of Agenda 
Approval of the Following Meeting Minutes; 

(a) December 14, 2021 – Regular Closed Session 
Discussed and Considered Litigation, Legal and Legislation Matters 
Discussed Personnel Matters 
Discussed Member and Board Disciplinary Matters 

 
19. Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:37 p.m. 

 

Neda Ardani, Secretary of the Board  
United Laguna Woods Mutual 

 

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 13 of 14



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #5b 
Page 14 of 14



RESOLUTION 01-22-XX 

Recording of a Lien 

WHEREAS, Member ID 947-407-84; is currently delinquent to United Laguna 
Woods Mutual with regard to the monthly assessment; and 

WHEREAS, a Notice of Delinquent Assessment (Lien) will be filed upon adoption 
of this resolution following at least a majority vote of the Board (with no delegation 
of such action by the Board), acting in an open meeting, and for which the Board's 
vote is recorded in the minutes; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March 8, 2022, that the Board of 
Directors hereby approves the recording of a Lien for Member ID 947-407- 84 
and; 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #11c(1) 
Page 1 of 2



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #11c(1) 
Page 2 of 2



RESOLUTION 01-22-XX 

Recording of a Lien 

WHEREAS, Member ID 947-365-16; is currently delinquent to United Laguna 
Woods Mutual with regard to the monthly assessment; and 

WHEREAS, a Notice of Delinquent Assessment (Lien) will be filed upon adoption 
of this resolution following at least a majority vote of the Board (with no delegation 
of such action by the Board), acting in an open meeting, and for which the Board's 
vote is recorded in the minutes; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March 8, 2022, that the Board of 
Directors hereby approves the recording of a Lien for Member ID 947-365- 16 
and; 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #11c(2) 
Page 1 of 2



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #11c(2) 
Page 2 of 2



 
 

RESOLUTION 01-22-XX 
 

Recording of a Lien 
 

WHEREAS, Member ID 947-380-59; is currently delinquent to United Laguna 
Woods Mutual with regard to the monthly assessment; and 

 
WHEREAS, a Notice of Delinquent Assessment (Lien) will be filed upon adoption 
of this resolution following at least a majority vote of the Board (with no delegation 
of such action by the Board), acting in an open meeting, and for which the Board's 
vote is recorded in the minutes; 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March 8, 2022, that the Board of 
Directors hereby approves the recording of a Lien for Member ID 947-380- 59 
and; 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

 

Agenda Item #11c(3) 
Page 1 of 2



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #11c(3) 
Page 2 of 2



RESOLUTION 01-22-XX 

Deny Landscape Revision Request 
880-B Via Mendoza

WHEREAS, on February 10, 2022, the Landscape Committee reviewed a landscape 
revision request from the Member at 880-B to install stepping stones/pavers in lieu of 
existing landscape to create an open area to place chairs to sit outside, and;  

WHEREAS, the committee determined that the proposed alteration is essentially 
adding common area for personal use and violates United Mutual common area rules 
and policies, and thereby recommends denying the request for the landscape revision 
request located adjacent to 880-B Via Mendoza. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March 8, 2022, the Board of Directors denies 
the landscape revision request adjacent to 880-B;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution.  

Agenda Item #11d 
Page 1 of 2



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #11d 
Page 2 of 2



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: 
FOR: 

March 8, 2022 
United Laguna Hills Mutual Board

SUBJECT: Variance Request: Ms. Colleen Hey of 81-C Calle Aragon (Madrid, 4) 
Room Addition on the Existing Exclusive Area Front Patio, 
Bathroom Addition, and Enclosed Atrium

RECOMMENDATION 

The United ACSC recommends the United Laguna Hills Mutual Board approve the 
request for a room addition on the existing exclusive area front patio, bathroom 
addition, and enclosed atrium, with the conditions stated in Appendix A. 

BACKGROUND 

Ms. Colleen Hey of 81-C Calle Aragon, a Madrid style manor, requests Board approval 
of a variance for a room addition on the existing front patio, bathroom addition, and 
enclosed atrium. 

Due to there being no existing Standard for the multiple components of this remodel on a 
4 (Madrid) floor plan, Staff seeks Board approval prior to issuing a Mutual Consent for the 
alterations. 

Plans and specifications have been submitted for review (Attachment 1). 

DISCUSSION 

Ms. Colleen Hey is proposing to add a room addition on the existing front patio, a 
bathroom addition, and enclose the atrium. 

The 11’-8” x 6’-0” room addition on the patio will consist of the removal of the wall with 
the existing entry doors and window, pouring a new concrete slab with footing support to 
raise the floor to match the rest of the unit and installing a new wood framed wall with 
stucco with entry double doors and sidelites, to align with the front edge of the storage 
room.  Finish and paint are to match the existing wall.  Walls and ceiling will be insulated. 
This will add approximately 70 square feet to the unit. 

The reconfiguration of the existing bathroom walls will allow the addition of a powder room 
adjacent to bedroom 2.  The two powder rooms will be joined by a walk-in shower room 
in a Jack-and-Jill bathroom configuration.  The addition of a powder room for this unit is 
addressed by Standard 17, but the layout is substantially different. 

Agenda Item #11e 
Page 1 of 18



The atrium will be mostly enclosed, leaving a 3’-0” x 4’-6” (13.5 square feet) light well for 
a bedroom 2 egress window.  This light well will be required to remain open to the sky.  
With the removal of two of the structural walls around the atrium and part of the kitchen 
wall, a new dining area (approximately 67 square feet) adjoining the kitchen will be 
created.  The enclosed atrium for this unit is addressed by Standard 15, but the layout is 
substantially different. 

The plan indicates a wooden patio cover on the patio.  Wood is not an acceptable 
material for the patio cover.  The patio cover shall comply with Standard 20. 

The portion of the existing slab(s) to be occupied by the room addition(s) shall be 
demolished and replaced with a new slab, footings, and moisture barrier per the current 
building code, to match the existing interior floor slab elevation.  An overpour will not be 
allowed. 

Structural drawings will be submitted for review prior to issuance of the Mutual Consents 
for Demolition and Alteration.  Specifically, cutting of roof trusses to accommodate the 
addition will not be allowed.  The existing trusses are to remain intact.  Additionally, the 
structural tie-in of the additions shall be addressed on the structural drawings. 

Currently, there is one open Mutual Consent for Unit 81-C, which is in reference to this 
variance.  This variance was required due to the scope of work for the Mutual Consent 
for Alteration differing from the original scope of work identified on the Mutual Consent for 
Demolition.  Demolition is currently under construction and mostly complete, short of 
demolition of the structural and utility systems. 

As part of the remodel, the existing plumbing lines need to meet size and slope fall of 
current code to accommodate any additional loads from new appliances and fixtures. 

Staff recommends approval from the Board regarding the variance request for the 
following reasons.   The Member has submitted architectural drawings for the proposed 
alteration for review.  As indicated on the plans, additions are contained by the original 
construction exclusive-use common area limits as shown in Appendix B.  The remodel 
should not cause a significant change to existing drainage, landscaping, or similar issues 
related to common area maintenance. 

A City of Laguna Woods building permit final would verify compliance with all applicable 
building codes. 

A Neighbor Awareness Notice was sent to Units 81-A, 81-B, and 81-D on February 8, 
2022 due to sharing common walls, having line of sight, or being potentially affected 
during construction.  

At the time of writing the report, there have been no responses to the Neighbor Awareness 
Notices. 

All future costs and maintenance associated with the subject alterations are the 
responsibility of the Mutual member(s) at 81-C. 
 

 

 

Agenda Item #11e 
Page 2 of 18



Prepared By: 

Reviewed By: 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Appendix A:   
Appendix B:  
Attachment 1: 
Attachment 2: 
Attachment 3: 
Attachment 4: 
Attachment 5:

Richard de la Fuente, Alterations Inspector II 

Gavin Fogg, Inspections Supervisor   
Robbi Doncost, Manor Alterations Manager 
Baltazar Mejia, Maintenance & Construction Assistant Director P.E.

Conditions of Approval 
Unit Record Plan 
Scope 
Variance Application 
Photos 
Aerial Photos 
Resolution 

Agenda Item #11e 
Page 3 of 18



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Manor: 81-C Calle Aragon

Variance Description: Room Addition on the Existing Front Patio, Bathroom 
Addition, and Enclosed Atrium 

A Variance for Alterations has been granted at the above manor, subject to the attached 
plans stamped approved and is subject to a final inspection by the Division.  Any 
variations to the approved attached plans are not allowed and could result in a stop work 
notice and/or disciplinary action taken against the Member. 

Manor-Specific Conditions: 

A. General Comments:

A.1. This approval does not change the number of bedrooms or the original
maximum occupants permitted in the Unit. 

A.2. The Member shall provide plans, specifications, and calculations from a duly
licensed structural engineer to conform to the Building Code for all foundation, 
framing, and beam additions for the work of this variance.  

A.3. A City of Laguna Woods Building Permit will be required and provided to Manor
Alterations to verify all code requirements for new or modified structural 
components, and shoring have been satisfied. 

B. Materials and Methods:

B.1. Any piping in bathrooms with adjacent units shall be insulated for sound
reduction, including penetrations through framing. 

B.2. Wood is not an acceptable material for patio covers.  The patio cover shall
comply with Standard 20. 

B.3. The portion of the existing slab(s) to be occupied by the room addition(s) shall
be demolished and replaced with a new slab, footings, and moisture barrier 
per the current building code, to match the existing interior floor slab elevation. 
An overpour will not be allowed. 

B.4. Cutting of roof trusses to accommodate the addition will not be allowed.  The
existing trusses are to remain intact.  Additionally, the structural tie-in of the 
additions shall be addressed on the structural drawings. 

Agenda Item #11e 
Page 4 of 18

DELAFUR
Text Box
APPENDIX A CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL



 
C. Requirements for Mutual Consent for Alterations: 

 
C.1. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Alterations, a complete set of 

unit specific plans, specifications and calculations prepared by a licensed 
architect or structural engineer depicting the proposed improvement must be 
submitted to the Division office located in the Laguna Woods Village 
Community Center.  The plans must depict any required structural 
modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building is maintained 
upon completion of the proposed improvement. 

 
C.2. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Alterations, the Member must 

have conducted an inspection of the waste lines, by a VMS Plumber, to assure 
no repairs are needed.  The inspection will be a chargeable service to the 
Member.  Inspection appointments are to be made with Resident Services, by 
authorized persons only.  Findings from the video inspection will be recorded 
on the chargeable service ticket for Alterations staff to review. 

 
C.3. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Alternations, if required, the 

Member shall verify with Plumbing if the manor plumbing has been treated with 
an ePIPE Epoxy Barrier, to assure that Mutual property is appropriately 
addressed during construction.  Any repair or connection to the epoxy coated 
pipe should be performed in such a manner that the repair or the remodel of 
the existing system does not damage the epoxy barrier.  Before repairing or 
remodeling any ACE Duraflo epoxy barrier, call 800-359-6369 to ensure the 
proper technique is used for the specific repair or remodel. 

 
C.4. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Alterations, if required, a Mutual 

Roof Alteration Notification (“Tie-In Form”) must be submitted to the Division.  
All roof tie-ins must be performed by a C-39 Licensed Contractor.  The Member 
may hire a C-39 Licensed Contractor of his/her own choice to perform roof tie-
ins for the installation of solar panels on all roof types except PVC Cool Roofs. 
For PVC Cool Roofs, regardless of the roof type, all tie-ins must be performed 
by the Mutual’s roofing contractor at the Member’s expense. All tie-ins may 
only be made to sound structural elements. Existing structural elements 
proposed to be tied to, which exhibit signs of dry rot or other structural defects, 
must first be replaced or repaired at the Member’s expense during construction 
of the improvement. 

 
C.5. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Alterations, the Member shall 

request a Maintenance and Construction Department inspection to assure that 
Mutual property is appropriately addressed during construction. 

 

Agenda Item #11e 
Page 5 of 18

DELAFUR
Text Box
APPENDIX A CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL



D. Requirements for Final Inspection by Manor Alterations: 
 
D.1. Prior to Final Inspection by Manor Alterations, a scanned copy of the City-

Approved and Stamped plan check drawing set shall be submitted to the 
Division office located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center. The 
plans must depict the work as completed and approved by the City, including 
all structural and architectural modifications. 
 

D.2. Prior to Final Inspection by Manor Alterations, all altered exterior surfaces 
should match the Building texture and color; vinyl fence/gate will be either 
white or taupe, tubular steel or wrought iron fence/gate will be black or existing 
body color of the building; the approved colors and materials are identified as 
“United Laguna Woods Mutual Color Selections” at Resident Services, located 
at the Community Center first floor. 

 
 

See next page for General Conditions. 
  

Agenda Item #11e 
Page 6 of 18

DELAFUR
Text Box
APPENDIX A CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL



General Conditions: 
 
G. General Conditions 

 
G.1. No improvement shall be installed, constructed, modified or altered at 81-C, 

(“Property”) within the United Laguna Woods Mutual (“Mutual”) without an 
approved Mutual Consent for Alterations application for the improvement has 
been made to, and approved, in writing, by, the Village Management 
Services, Inc. (“VMS, Inc.”), Alterations Division (“Division”), or, in the event 
of a Variance from the Mutual’s Alteration Standards, the Architectural 
Control and Standards Committee (“ACSC”). In the event written permission 
is given for the installation, construction, modification or alteration of any 
improvement(s) upon the Property, the Member or Members (“Member”) 
agrees to comply with the Mutual’s Governing Documents and any specific 
terms or conditions imposed, and that the installation, construction, 
modification or alteration shall be in strict compliance with the terms of the 
approval. 

 
G.2. Member hereby consents to and grants to the Mutual and the Maintenance 

and Construction Department , and their representatives, a right of entry 
upon the Property at any time to be used to inspect the Property and the 
improvements thereon and for the Mutual and the Department , and their 
representatives and contractors to remedy any violation upon the Property, 
including, but not limited to, removing trash, removing any improvement 
installed without approval or modifying an improvement to bring the same 
into compliance with the terms of the approval. 

 
G.3. All costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or removal of the 

improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s 
Member at 81-C and all future Mutual Members at 81-C.  

 
G.4. Member shall be responsible for all activity by contractors, subcontractors, 

material suppliers and their employees and agents and any others who 
perform work on the Property, including any violation of the Mutual’s 
Governing Documents, including, but not limited to, traffic and parking 
violations, maintenance of a clean job site at all times, damage to Mutual 
property, and use of Mutual property for storage of equipment or materials 
without prior approval.  Member acknowledges and agrees that all such 
persons are his/her invitees.  Member shall be responsible for informing all 
his/her invitees of the Mutual’s Rules and Regulations. 

 

Agenda Item #11e 
Page 7 of 18

DELAFUR
Text Box
APPENDIX A CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL



G.5. Member shall be liable for any violation of the Mutual’s Governing 
Documents by any invitee, including any fine, assessment or other charge 
levied in connection therewith. 

 
G.6. Member is responsible for following the gate clearance process 

(http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com/residents/resident-services and click 
on documents and Business Pass Application Instructions) in place to admit 
contractors and other invitees. 

 
G.7. Member’s contractors and other invitees shall have business signage on 

vehicles and travel to and from the job site by the most direct route available 
and are not authorized to use Mutual recreational facilities or other amenities 
while they are in the Village for performance of work in connection with the 
Property. 

 
G.8. Parking of contractors or other invitees’ vehicles is prohibited in covered 

resident parking, open resident spaces, handicapped spaces or fire lanes.  
Contractors or other invitees must park on the street.  To the extent possible 
contractors’ or other invitees’ vehicles should be limited in number. 

 
G.9. The Member is responsible for the submission of a valid mutual consent no 

later than 2 weeks from the date of the Variance approval.  The expiration 
date of the Variance will then match the expiration date of the issuance of 
the Manor Alterations Mutual Consent for the improvements.  If a valid 
Mutual Consent application is not submitted within said 2 weeks, then this 
Variance shall expire 180 days following the date of the Board approval of 
the Variance. 

 
G.10. All construction must be completed within 180 days or 6 months from the 

later date of Board approval of the Variance and issuance of the Mutual 
Consent for start of demolition or construction work. 

 
G.11. A City of Laguna Woods permit may be required, which may include the 

requirement to obtain clearance from the South Coast Air Quality 
Management District (Asbestos Hot Line at (909) 396-2336).  Prior to the 
issuance of a Mutual Consent for Alterations, the appropriate City of Laguna 
Woods permit number(s) must be submitted to the Division office located in 
the Laguna Woods Village Community Center. The City permit must be 
finalized within the prescribed timeframe, and a copy of the final permit must 
be submitted to the Division within two weeks. 

 

Agenda Item #11e 
Page 8 of 18

DELAFUR
Text Box
APPENDIX A CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL



G.12. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Alterations, a complete set of 
unit specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer 
depicting the proposed improvement must be submitted to the Division office 
located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must 
depict any required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity 
of the building is maintained upon completion of the proposed improvement. 

 
G.13. All improvements must be installed in accordance with the California State 

Building Code, and the published Mutual Architectural Alterations Standards, 
Policies and Guidelines. See http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com. 

 
G.14. During construction, work hours established by the Mutual and the Noise 

Ordinance set forth in the City of Laguna Woods Municipal Code must be 
adhered to at all times. 

 
G.15. During construction, both the Mutual Consent for Alterations and the City 

Building Permit must be on display for public view at all times in a location 
approved by the Division. 

 
G.16. It is mandatory that no waste or materials associated with the construction 

be dumped in the Village trash bins; such waste or materials associated with 
the construction must be disposed of offsite by the contractor.   

 
G.17. A dumpster is approved for placement at the location identified by Security 

Staff by calling 949-580-1400. All dumpsters must conform to the Policy for 
Temporary Containers. Dumpsters must be ordered from the approved City 
of Laguna Woods waste hauler and must be maintained at all times. 

 
G.18. Dumpsters must be ordered from the approved City of Laguna Woods waste 

hauler and must be maintained at all times. 
 

G.19. A portable bathroom is approved for placement at the location identified by 
Security Staff by calling 949-580-1400. 

 
G.20. The Mutual Consent for Alterations expires six months after the date of 

approval, unless an application is submitted with fees and approved by the 
Division for an extension.  Only one extension for a maximum of an additional 
six months may be granted. 

 
G.21. Violations of the forgoing conditions or the Mutual’s Governing Documents 

(See http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com), including, but not limited to, 

Agenda Item #11e 
Page 9 of 18

http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com/
http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com/
DELAFUR
Text Box
APPENDIX A CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL



unpaid assessments, work outside the approved plans, excessive noise, 
illegal dumping, or working after hours, will result in disciplinary action, which 
could result in a stop work notice, loss of privileges and/or severe fines to the  
Member.  Such fines left unpaid will result in forfeiture of a portion or all of 
the Conformance Deposit required above or other legal remedy. 

 
G.22. Member shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless United and its officers, 

directors, committee Members and agents from and against any and all 
claims, demands, costs, fines, judgments, settlements and any other costs, 
expenses, amounts and liabilities arising from Member’s improvements and 
installation, construction, design and maintenance of same. 

 

Agenda Item #11e 
Page 10 of 18

DELAFUR
Text Box
APPENDIX A CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL



Agenda Item #11e 
Page 11 of 18

DELAFUR
Text Box
APPENDIX BRECORD PLAN



Agenda Item #11e 
Page 12 of 18

DELAFUR
Line

DELAFUR
Line

DELAFUR
Typewritten Text
PATIO COVER PER STANDARD 20

DELAFUR
Arrow

DELAFUR
Arrow

DELAFUR
Polygon

DELAFUR
Rectangle

DELAFUR
Polygon

DELAFUR
Rectangle

DELAFUR
Rectangle

DELAFUR
Rectangle

DELAFUR
Polygon

DELAFUR
Typewritten Text
AREA OF VARIANCE

DELAFUR
Arrow

DELAFUR
Typewritten Text
AREA OF VARIANCE

DELAFUR
Arrow

DELAFUR
Arrow

DELAFUR
Arrow

DELAFUR
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1SCOPE OF WORK

DELAFUR
Line

DELAFUR
Line

DELAFUR
Line

DELAFUR
Line

DELAFUR
Typewritten Text
BEARING WALL TO BE DEMOLISHED

DELAFUR
Arrow

DELAFUR
Arrow



Agenda Item #11e 
Page 13 of 18

DELAFUR
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2APPLICATION



Agenda Item #11e 
Page 14 of 18

DELAFUR
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2 APPLICATION



Agenda Item #11e 
Page 15 of 18

DELAFUR
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3PHOTOS

DELAFUR
PHOTO TITLE
SIDE ELEVATION

DELAFUR
PHOTO TITLE
FRONT ELEVATION



Agenda Item #11e 
Page 16 of 18

DELAFUR
PHOTO TITLE
EXISTING ENTRY WITH DEMOLISHED SLAB

DELAFUR
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3 PHOTOS



Agenda Item #11e 
Page 17 of 18

DELAFUR
MANOR ADDRESS
81-CCALLE ARAGON

DELAFUR
MANOR ADDRESS
81-CCALLE ARAGON

DELAFUR
NORTH N

DELAFUR
NORTH ARROW

DELAFUR
NORTH N

DELAFUR
NORTH ARROW

DELAFUR
LOCATION

DELAFUR
LOCATION

DELAFUR
UNIT
D

DELAFUR
UNIT
C

DELAFUR
UNIT
A

DELAFUR
UNIT
B

DELAFUR
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 4AERIALS



ATTACHMENT 5 
RESOLUTION 

RESOLUTION 01-22-XX 

Variance Request 

WHEREAS, Ms. Colleen Hey of 81-C Calle Aragon, a Madrid style manor, requests Board 
approval of a variance for a room addition on the existing front patio, bathroom addition, and 
enclosed atrium, and, 

WHEREAS, a Neighborhood Awareness Notice was sent to Members of affected units notifying 
them that an application to make an alteration to a neighboring unit had been made and that 
comments or objections could be made in writing to the Architectural Controls and Standards 
Committee or in person at the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee Meeting on 
February 17, 2022, and, 

WHEREAS, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee reviewed the variance and 
moved a recommendation for approval to the Board, and, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on March 8, 2022, the Board of Directors hereby 
approves the request for the room addition on the existing front patio, bathroom addition, and 
enclosed atrium.; 

RESOLVED FURTHER, all costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or removal of 
the improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s Member at 81-C 
Calle Aragon and all future Mutual Members at 81-C Calle Aragon; 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby authorized on 
behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #11e 
Page 18 of 18



Agenda Item #11f 
Page 1 of 2



Agenda Item #11f 
Page 2 of 2



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: March 8, 2022 
FOR: Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: Additional Time Extension Request for 729-D Avenida Majorca 

RECOMMENDATION 
Consider the shareholder request for an additional 180-calendar day extension for existing 
Mutual Consents and Variance.  

BACKGROUND 

The shareholder’s original Mutual Consent for Demolition was issued on February 5, 2020.  The 
original Variance was approved by the Board on April 14, 2020 and the corresponding Mutual 
Consent for Alteration was approved on June 16, 2020. Said Mutual Consents and Variance 
expired without construction commencing and were granted 90-day extensions on August 21, 
2020, and again on October 16, 2020.  On October 14, 2021, an additional 180-day extension 
was approved by the Board extending the permit deadlines to April 12, 2022. 

On January 20, 2022, the ACSC committee considered the request to grant a new extension, 
but the motion failed on a 1-1 vote. 

DISCUSSION 

The shareholder of 729-D Avenida Majorca, (Cordoba style manor) is requesting that the Board 
consider the request for approval of an additional 180-day extension for the existing Mutual 
Consent and Variance. If the extension of time is approved by the Board, the shareholder will be 
required to submit an updated mutual consent application for approval. This will allow the City 
of Laguna Woods to substantiate the mutual approval and then allow the issuance, at its 
discretion, of the building permit. 

Per the Conditions of Approval of the original Variance, the Mutual Consent for Alterations 
expires six months after the assigned date of approval, unless an application is submitted with 
fees and approved by the Division for an extension. Only one extension for a maximum of an 
additional six months may be granted by staff. 

Staff authority to allow extensions is restricted by Board Resolution 01-02-159, where work shall 
be completed within 180 calendar days of the permit issuance date. If the previously approved 
alteration is not completed in that time, the shareholder may be granted a one-time extension, 
not to exceed 90 days, and the conclusion of any work not completed within the extension period 
will be approved at the discretion of the Board.  A new 180 calendar day extension of time would 
establish a new expiration date of October 10, 2022. 

Agenda Item #12a 
Page 1 of 26



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
No additional fees have been requested or paid by the shareholder for this work. 

Prepared By: Baltazar Mejia, P.E., M&C Assistant Director 

Reviewed By: Manuel Gomez, M&C Director 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: Existing Open Mutual Consent
Attachment 2: Resolution 

Agenda Item #12a 
Page 2 of 26



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 3 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 4 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 5 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 6 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 7 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 8 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 9 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 10 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 11 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 12 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 13 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 14 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 15 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 16 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 17 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 19 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 20 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 18 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 21 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 22 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 23 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



Agenda Item #12a 
Page 24 of 26

ATTACHMENT 1



RESOLUTION 01-22-XX 

Appeal Request for Additional Time Extension Request at 729-D 

WHEREAS, Mr. Bastani of 729-D Avenida Majorca, a Cordoba style 
manor, is requesting Board approval of a variance to provide an additional 
180-day extension for existing expired Mutual Consents and Variance,
and,

WHEREAS, the Mutual Consent for Demolition was released on February 
5, 2020, the Variance was approved by the Board on April 14, 2020 and 
the Mutual Consent for Alteration was approved on June 16, 2020, and 
said Mutual Consents and Variance expired without construction 
commencing, and were granted 90-day extensions on August 21, 2020, 
and again on October 16, 2020, which have again expired on January 16, 
2021 without construction commencing, and,  

WHEREAS, on October 14, 2021, an additional 180-day extension was 
approved by the Board extending the permit deadlines to April 12, 2022, 
and on January 20, 2022 the ACSC committee considered the request to 
grant an additional new extension, but the motion failed on a 1-1 vote and, 

WHEREAS, per the Conditions of Approval Item 27 of Resolution 01-20-
20 for the Variance in question, the Mutual Consent for Alterations expires 
six months after the date of approval, unless an application is submitted 
with fees and approved by the Division for an extension, and only one 
extension for a maximum of an additional six months may be granted, and 

WHEREAS, Staff authority to allow extensions is restricted by Resolution 
01-02-159, where work shall be completed within 180 calendar days of the
permit issuance date, and if not completed in that time, may be granted a
one-time extension not to exceed 90 days, and the conclusion of work not
completed within the extension period will be at the discretion of the Board,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on March 8, 2022, the Board of 
Directors hereby approves the appeal request to provide an additional 
180-day extension for existing expired Mutual Consents and Variance;

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #12a 
Page 25 of 26

ATTACHMENT 2



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #12a 
Page 26 of 26



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Governing Documents Review Committee 
December 16, 2021 

ENDORSEMENT (to Board) 

Discuss and Consider Amendment to the Clutter Policy: 

On December 16, 2021, the Governing Documents Review Committee (Committee) 
reviewed Discuss and Consider Amendment to the Clutter Policy. 

The Committee discussed and made the following changes to the Clutter Policy, 
Conditions, Section 5: 

Items that constitute a nuisance to one’s neighbors should not be placed 
in common areas or Exclusive Use Common Areas. Examples are intrusive 
wind chimes, food and water, which will attract birds, insects, and other 
animals or any objects which are offensive or objectionable. (City of 
Laguna Woods Municipal Code Section 5.20.070) Residents are 
encouraged to resolve amicably differences or disputes involving such 
items. 

Director Liberatore made a motion to make these changes and forward the matter to legal 
counsel for review and approval. Without objection the motion passed. 

Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 1 of 10



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 2 of 10



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: 

FOR:  

March 8, 2022 

Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Clutter Policy 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the amended Clutter Policy. 

BACKGROUND 

The Governing Documents Review Committee is tasked to review policy and processes for 
consistency. One of the areas of review by the Committee is monitor appearances to protect re-
sales and property values.   

DISCUSSION 
On December 16, 2021, the Governing Documents Review Committee (Committee) reviewed 
Discuss and Consider Amendment to the Clutter Policy. 

The Committee discussed and made the following changes to the Clutter Policy, Conditions, 
Section 5: 

Items that constitute a nuisance to one’s neighbors should not be placed in 
common areas or Exclusive Use Common Areas. Examples are intrusive wind 
chimes, food and water, which will attract birds, insects, and other animals or any 
objects which are offensive or objectionable. (City of Laguna Woods Municipal 
Code Section 5.20.070) Residents are encouraged to resolve amicably 
differences or disputes involving such items. 

Director Liberatore made a motion to make these changes and forward the matter to legal 
counsel for review and approval. Without objection the motion passed. 

Prepared By: Francis Gomez, Operations Manager 

Reviewed By: Blessilda Wright, Compliance Supervisor 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: Clutter Policy
Attachment 2: Resolution 01-22-XX 

Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 3 of 10



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 4 of 10



Clutter Policy 
Resolution 01-18XX-104XXX; Adopted September 26, 2018XXX 

I. Purpose
The purpose of this policy is to set forth guidelines by United Laguna Woods
Mutual (United) for the safety and prevention of damage from items placed by the
residents in “Exclusive Use Common Area” and “Common Area.”

Please note that this list is not exhaustive and any item that is placed within the
Mutual property, including but not limited to, the balcony, breezeway, carport,
patio, interior and common area is subject to the aforementioned rules and
regulations of the Mutual.

II. Definitions
a. Exclusive Use Common Area – a portion of the common area designated

by the declaration for the exclusive use of one or more, but fewer than all,
of the owners of the separate interests and which is or will be appurtenant
to the separate interest or interests. Unless the declaration otherwise
provides, any shutters, awnings, window boxes, doorsteps, stoops,
porches, balconies, patios, exterior doors, doorframes, and hardware
incident thereto, screens and windows or other fixtures designed to serve
a single separate interest, but located outside the boundaries of the
separate interest, are exclusive use common area allocated exclusively to
that separate interest (i.e. patios, balconies, carport and interior of a Unit).
(Civil Code §4145)

b. Clutter - to fill or litter with things in a disorderly manner; a collection of
things lying about in an untidy mass. (cluttered. (n.d.) Burton’s Legal
Thesaurus, 4E. (2007)) In addition, anything positioned within the Mutual
property in a manner which is obstructing the free use of the area, creating
a health and safety risk to the community, and/or consequently causing
property damage within the Mutual. See further details under Conditions.

c. Common Area - the entire common interest development except the
separate interests therein (i.e. walkways, breezeways, and open space).
(Civil Code §4095)

d. Community – Laguna Woods Village.
e. Golden Rain Foundation (GRF) – the Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna

Hills, a California nonprofit mutual benefit corporation.
f. Governing Documents – all of the following, collectively, the Articles of

Incorporation; the Bylaws; Occupancy Agreements; the Rules and
Regulations; and any Resolutions or Policies of the Board; all the same
may be lawfully amended or modified from time to time.

ATT 1

Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 5 of 10



Clutter Policy 
Page 2 of 4 

g. Interior Clutter – any items that are hazardous or may be of fire or safety
danger, and/or potential damage to the inside of the Unit or surrounding
Units.

h. Member – Shareholder(s) entitled to Membership in the Corporation and
approved by the Board of Directors. Also known as Shareholder(s).

i. Resident is defined as any person who has been approved by the Board
of Directors for occupancy.

j. Staff - Employees of Village Management Services, Inc. authorized to act
on behalf of United.

k. United Laguna Woods Mutual (United) - is a non-profit cooperative
housing corporation which owns and manages all real property within the
original 21 cooperative Mutual’s.  In a cooperative, Shareholders are
members of a corporation which own all real property, including the
dwelling units, carports, and laundry facilities within the Mutual’s
boundaries, and each Shareholder is entitled to occupy a specific dwelling
unit under the terms of an Occupancy Agreement.  Also known as
Corporation. Also known as the Mutual.

III. Conditions
Clutter
Common areas are for the use and enjoyment of all residents and it is essential
that all residents be aware of the need for the safety and prevention of damage
to the buildings by items placed by the residents in or on the common areas of
the Mutual’s multi-story buildings and where applicable to other residential
buildings.

The following rules for residents address the safety and prevention of damage
issues. Residents should take whatever corrective action is necessary to manage
those items they have placed outside their unit.  Residents who disregard these
guidelines will be given a citation to correct the problem, possibly followed with
disciplinary action.

1. All plants must be suitably potted with adequately sized saucers to collect
excess water and elevated by substantial caster or sturdy platforms.  Care
must be used to control the amount of water given to these plants so as
not to run over the saucer and collect on the floor surface or fall to a lower
level of the building on people, windows, or other objects belonging to
neighbors.

2. Items, including plants, statues, furniture, etc., may be placed adjacent to
a Unit’s front door on the floor and shall be limited.  Adequate clearance is
required to allow for easy walkway access along the area (at least in
number and size to allow for a 48-inch clearance as required by law.)

3. All plants shall be maintained by the resident in a healthy, well cared for
condition, properly watered and pruned.  Non-plant items shall be
maintained clean and in good repair.

Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 6 of 10



Clutter Policy 
Page 3 of 4 

4. Potted plants are not to be placed on railings in common areas.  Hanging
plants or hanging objects are prohibited in breezeway and walkways.

5. Items that constitute a nuisance to one’s neighbors should not be placed
in common areas or Exclusive Use Common Areas. Examples are
intrusive wind chimes, food and water, which will attract birds, insects, and
other animals or any objects which are offensive or objectionable. (City of
Laguna Woods Municipal Code Section 5.20.070) Residents are
encouraged to resolve amicably differences or disputes involving such
items.

6. A resident’s balcony and patio area adjoining a unit is Exclusive Use
Common Area.  This area needs the same care & protection as the
walkways and breezeways to prevent dry rot, decay and mold of surfaces.
Therefore only a limited number of potted plants on the balconies of
multistory buildings are allowed. No more than 15% of the total floor area
of a balcony may be used for potted plants.

7. Landscape crews will not care for a resident’s personal items placed in
common areas unless arranged through the Customer Service
Department as a chargeable service.

Any building, by majority decision, may establish additional rules for its own use, 
providing the rules are not in conflict with the above guidelines.  United shall 
resolve any disputes or misunderstandings relating to Exclusive Use Common 
Areas and Common Areas. 

Governing Documents: “The Member shall not permit or suffer anything to be 
done or kept in or about the dwelling unit or other premises of the Corporation 
which will increase the rate of insurance on any building or other property of the 
Corporation or on the contents thereof or which will obstruct or interfere with the 
rights of other members of the Corporation or annoy them by unreasonable 
noises or otherwise nor will it commit or permit any nuisance in or about the 
dwelling unit or other premises of the Corporation or commit or suffer any 
immoral or illegal act to be committed thereon.” (Occupancy Agreement, Article 
5, Use of Premises) 

IV. Enforcement
United is authorized to take disciplinary action against a Member(s) whose
dwelling may be found in violation of the Governing Documents. When a
complaint is lodged regarding the occurrence of a violation, the Board of
Directors has a fiduciary duty to investigate and impose, if appropriate, discipline
as set forth in the Governing Documents.

The Board has the authority to impose monetary fines, suspend Member(s)
privileges, and/or bring forth legal action. The Member(s) are entirely responsible
for ensuring that the Governing Documents are followed by anyone they allow
into the Community.  This includes any Co-occupant, Lessee, Guest, Care
Provider, Vendor, invitee or contractor.

Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 7 of 10



Clutter Policy 
Page 4 of 4 

A complaint may be registered by calling the Security Department at 949-580-
1400 or the Compliance Division by calling 949-268-CALL or email to 
compliance@vmsinc.org.  

Investigating clutter: a Security Inspector patrols the Community and should Staff 
identity objective evidence of clutter a Notice of Clutter Violation is issued.  The 
Compliance Division will send a follow up notice advising the Member of the rules 
and requesting compliance.   

For interior clutter: Staff will schedule an interior inspection to obtain photographs 
and determine the severity of the clutter, potential hazard, and damage to the 
property.  Staff works closely with the Social Services Division and outside 
agencies on interior clutter violations.   

Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 8 of 10

mailto:compliance@vmsinc.org


RESOLUTION 01-22-XX 

Clutter Policy 

WHEREAS, the Governing Documents Review Committee is tasked to 
review policy and processes for efficiency and consistency; and  

WHEREAS, the Committee recognized that need to update the Clutter 
Policy;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED; March 8, 2022 that the 
Board of Directors of this Corporation hereby approves the 
amended Clutter Policy, as attached to the official minutes of this 
meeting; and   

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 01-18-104, adopted February 
26, 2018 is hereby superseded in its entirety and cancelled;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose 
of this resolution. 

ATT 2

Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 9 of 10



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 10 of 10



 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
DATE: March 8, 2022 
FOR:  Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: GRF Insurance Ad Hoc Committee – United Board Appointments 
   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Discuss and consider the appointment of two board members to the recently formed Golden 
Rain Foundation (GRF) Insurance Ad Hoc Committee, subject to ratification at the April board 
meeting when United Laguna Woods Mutual Committee Appointments are updated.  
 
BACKGROUND 
On March 1, 2022, the GRF board approved the formation of the Insurance Ad Hoc Committee 
in accordance with the GRF Amended Bylaws. Attachment 1 to this report contains Resolution 
90-22-10 outlining the mission statement, duties and responsibilities of the Insurance Ad Hoc 
Committee. 
 
DISCUSSION 
The board may appoint two members to the recently formed GRF Insurance Ad Hoc Committee, 
subject to ratification at the April board meeting when United Laguna Woods Mutual Committee 
Appointments are updated.  
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
None. 
 
 
Prepared By:  Siobhan Foster, CEO/General Manager 
 
     
Reviewed By:  Catherine Laster, Services Manager 
  
    Dan Yost, Risk Manager 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: Resolution 90-22-10 

Agenda Item #13a 
Page 1 of 2



RESOLUTION 90-22-10 

Insurance Ad Hoc Committee 

WHEREAS, the formation of an Insurance Ad Hoc Committee is being considered 
by the board of directors pursuant to Article 7, Section 7.1.2 and Section 7.5 of the 
bylaws of this corporation; 

WHEREAS, the primary mission of the Insurance Ad Hoc Committee is to 
research and evaluate risk management alternatives for Laguna Woods Village; 
and 

WHEREAS, the duties and responsibilities of the Insurance Ad Hoc Committee 
are to: 

1. Take into consideration the current insurance pricing and unique
requirements of GRF and each housing mutual, including but not limited to
consolidating valuation assessments in an effort to lower overall costs
while managing risk; and

2. Make recommendations for the entire community.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March 1, 2022 the Board of Directors of 
this Corporation hereby adopts the mission statement, duties and responsibilities 
of the Insurance Ad Hoc Committee; and; 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this 
resolution. 

Attachment 1 

Agenda Item #13a 
Page 2 of 2



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
DATE: March 8, 2022 
FOR:  Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: 2022 Election Schedule, Annual Meeting of Mutual Members, and Inspector 

of Election Services 
   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the proposed 2022 election schedule, set the annual Meeting of Mutual Members, and 
appoint UniLect Corporation as the Inspector of Election for the Election of Directors.  
 
BACKGROUND 
In compliance with Civil Code §5110, the rules require the association to select an independent 
party as inspector of elections. The Inspector of Elections performs several tasks during an 
election, including but not limited to print, collate, mail, receive, register, store and safeguard 
secret ballots and required inner (ballot envelope) and outer envelope (mailing envelope) and 
provide election day services such as ballot counting, tabulation, validation, and certification of 
election results.  
 
Article V Section 2 of the United Laguna Woods Mutual Bylaws states in part that the annual 
Meeting of Members shall be held on the Second Tuesday of October of each year at 9:30 a.m. 
unless the Board of Directors fixes another time and/or date and so notifies the Members as 
provided in Article V Section 4 of the Bylaws. The annual election schedule is typically 
constructed to complete the tabulation of ballots prior to the annual meeting of Mutual Members 
on the second Tuesday of October. 
 
DISCUSSION 
The proposed 2022 election schedule reflects the timeline required by Civil Code §5115 for the 
annual election process. 
 
The proposed 2022 election schedule has been reviewed by legal counsel and details the dates 
upon which action must be taken by staff and the Inspector of Elections to comply with the 
adopted election rules. Key milestones include the following: 
 
Milestone Date  
Nominations open May 25, 2022 
Nominations close June 24, 2022 
Mail ballot package August 22, 2022 
Ballots due  September 22, 2022 
Tabulation of ballots September 23, 2022 

Agenda Item #13c 
Page 1 of 4



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
2022 Election Schedule 
March 8, 2022 
Page 2 

Milestone Date 
Annual Meeting of Mutual Members October 11, 2022 

UniLect Corporation was appointed as Inspector of Election for the 2019 annual election. UniLect 
has proven expertise with homeowner association elections and Davis-Stirling Act compliance. 
Based on the firm’s satisfactory performance during the 2021 cycle, staff recommends that the 
board appoint UniLect Corporation to again serve as Inspector of Election in 2022. 

The Inspector of Elections will be responsible for administering an election for the Election of the 
Directors. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
The proposal submitted by UniLect Corporation for the 2022 Election of the Directors is 
$26,980.00 excluding postage. Funding for annual inspector of election services is included in 
the annual operating budget.   

Prepared By: Catherine Laster, Services Manager 

Reviewed By: Siobhan Foster, CEO 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATT 1: 2022 Election Schedule 
ATT 2: Resolution 01-22-XX, Approve Inspector of Election Services  

Agenda Item #13c 
Page 2 of 4



 

 
 
 
 
 

United Election Schedule 2022 
 

Staff Report to Approve Election Schedule & Resolution to 
Appoint Inspector of Elections 

March 8, 2022  

Mailing of Election by Acclamation Notice March 26, 2022  

Mailing of Annual Election and Call for Candidates (postcard) May 20, 2022  

Member Right to Review Mailing List July 22, 2022  

Record Date for Mailing Lists June 23, 2022  

Nominations Open May 25, 2022  

2nd Mailing of Election by Acclamation Notice 
May 25, 2022 – June 

17, 2022 
 

Nominations Close (5 p.m.) June 24, 2022  

Candidate Statements Due to Inspector of Elections June 24, 2022  

Deadline to Withdraw Candidacy July 21, 2022  

Copy of Mailing List to Inspector of Elections July 21, 2022  

Ballot Information to Inspector of Elections July 21, 2022  

General Notice of Candidate List/Information July 22, 2022  

Meet the Candidates and Candidate Video Filming August 19, 2022  

Mail Ballot Package August 22, 2022  

Replay Meet the Candidates TBA  

Notice Tabulation Meeting September 19, 2022  

Notice Annual Meeting September 28, 2022  

Ballots Due Back: 

− 11 a.m. Inspector’s Post Office box 

− 5 p.m. Community Center Ballot Box 

September 22, 2022  

Tabulation Meeting; Counting of Ballots by Inspector of Elections September 23, 2022  

Notice of Organizational Meeting October 6, 2022  

Annual/Organizational Board Meeting Date 
October 11, 2022, 

9:30 a.m., Board Room 
 

 
 

Agenda Item #13c 
Page 3 of 4



RESOLUTION 01-22-XX 
Approve Inspector of Election Services 

WHEREAS, Civil Code §5110 requires an association to select an 
independent third party or parties as an inspector of elections; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Civil Code §5110, §5115, §5120, and 
§5125, the inspector of elections performs several tasks during an election,
including but not limited to print and mail voter packages, inspect and
tabulate ballots, and certify results;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March 8, 2022, that the Board of 
Directors of United Laguna Woods Mutual hereby approves single-sourcing 
a contract to UniLect Corporation to perform inspector of election services 
for the 2022 annual Meeting of the Members; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
directed on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution. 

Agenda Item #13c 
Page 4 of 4



  Treasurer’s Report for March 8, 2022 Board Meeting  

 

 

 

 
SLIDE 1 – Through the reporting period of January 31, 2022, total revenue for United was 
$3,775K compared to expenses of $3,332K, resulting in net expense of $443K. 

 
SLIDE 2 – In Finance, we keep a close eye on the operating portion of our financial results. The 
Operating Fund (without Depreciation) shows an operating surplus of $97K through the reporting 
period. This chart shows how much of our revenue went into operations, with $1,877K coming in 
from assessments and $119K coming from non-assessment revenue. This is compared to 
operating expenditures of $1,899K (without Depreciation). 

SLIDE 3 – This next chart takes the full income statement and compares those results to budget. 
We can see that United ended the period better than budget by $427K when combining both 
operating and reserve savings. 

 
SLIDE 4 – The most significant variances from budget were attributable to the following: 

 
Outside Services $315K; Timing. Budgets are spread evenly for programs such as waste line 
remediation and building structures. Buildings 943, 24, 14, 2036, 2080 have been completed as of 
January 31st. 
 
Employee Compensation $230K; Favorable variance resulted primarily in M&C departments and 
Landscape due to open positions. Impacted areas include ground maintenance, damage 
restorations, carpentry, and plumbing. Recruitment is in progress to fill in current open positions. 
 
Materials and Supplies $83K; Favorable variance resulted in several areas of operations such as 
interior components, appliances, and paint due to timing of expenditures. Although budgeted 
throughout the year, expenditures will occur later. 
 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) On Investments ($173K); Unfavorable variance due to adverse 
conditions for bond investments during the reporting period. 
 
Property and Sales Tax ($62K); Unfavorable variance resulted due to higher property taxes 
than anticipated at the time of budget preparation. Assessment base has increased as average 
sales price trends upward. 

SLIDE 5 – On this pie chart, we show non-assessment revenues earned to date of $124K, 
excluding the Unrealized Loss on Available for Sale Investments.  If you include the unrealized 
loss on investments, non-assessment revenue totaled a loss of ($49K).  Revenue is organized by 
category, starting with our largest revenue generating category Fees and Charges to Residents, 
followed by Laundry, Resale Processing Fee, Lease Processing Fee, and so forth. 

  

Agenda Item #15a(1) 
Page 1 of 12



Treasurer’s Report for March 8, 2022 Board Meeting 

SLIDE 6 – On this pie chart, we see the expenses to date of $3.3M, showing that our largest 
categories of expense are for Property and Sales Tax, Employee Compensation, followed by, 
Utilities, Insurance, Materials and Supplies, Outside Services, and so forth. At the upper right 
corner, we show a breakout of the utility category. 

SLIDE 7 – On the next slide we see those same expenses, excluding property and sales tax. 

SLIDE 8 – Our fund balances are shown here. The Contingency Fund balance on January 31, 2022 
was $1,104K. Contributions and investment revenue totaled ($10K) resulted from unrealized loss 
on AFS investment due to adverse conditions for bond investments during the reporting period. 
There were no expenditures reported in the Contingency Fund. The Reserve Fund balance on 
January 31, 2022 was $19,587K. Contributions and investment revenue collected totaled $740K 
while expenditures were $321K. Property Taxes Fund balance on January 31, 2022 was ($112K). 
Contributions and investment revenue collected totaled $1,049K while expenditures were $1,095K. 

SLIDE 9 – We compare this to historical fund balances for the past five years on this chart, which 
have averaged $20 Million. 

SLIDE 10 – We have a slide here to show resale history from 2020 - 2022. Through January 31, 
2022, United sales totaled 38, which is 3 resales higher than prior year for the same time period. 
The average YTD resale price for a United Mutual manor was $313K, which is $56K higher than 
prior year for the same time period. 

Agenda Item #15a(1) 
Page 2 of 12



1

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

as
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 3
1,

 2
02

2

IN
CO

M
E 

ST
AT

EM
EN

T
(in

 T
ho

us
an

ds
)

AC
TU

AL

As
se

ss
m

en
tR

ev
en

ue
$3

,8
24

N
on

-a
ss

es
sm

en
t R

ev
en

ue
($

49
)

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

$3
,7

75

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

$3
,3

32

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

/(
Ex

pe
ns

e)
$4

43

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 1
2



2

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

as
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 3
1,

 2
02

2

O
PE

RA
TI

N
G 

O
N

LY
IN

CO
M

E 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T1

(in
 T

ho
us

an
ds

)
AC

TU
AL

As
se

ss
m

en
t R

ev
en

ue
$1

,8
77

N
on

-a
ss

es
sm

en
t R

ev
en

ue
$1

19

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

$1
,9

96

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

1
$1

,8
99

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Su

rp
lu

s
$9

7

1)
Ex

cl
ud

es
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 1
2



3

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

as
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 3
1,

 2
02

2

IN
CO

M
E 

ST
AT

EM
EN

T
(in

 T
ho

us
an

ds
)

AC
TU

AL
BU

DG
ET

VA
RI

AN
CE

B/
(W

)

As
se

ss
m

en
t R

ev
en

ue
$3

,8
24

$3
,8

08
$1

6

N
on

-a
ss

es
sm

en
t R

ev
en

ue
($

49
)

$1
53

($
20

2)

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

$3
,7

75
$3

,9
61

($
18

6)

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

$3
,3

32
$3

,9
45

$6
13

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

/(
Ex

pe
ns

e)
$4

43
$1

6
$4

27

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 1
2



4

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

as
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 3
1,

 2
02

2

($
17

3K
)

($
62

K)

$3
15

K

$2
30

K

$8
3K

O
ut

sid
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

Em
pl

oy
ee

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n

M
at

er
ia

ls 
an

d 
Su

pp
lie

s

U
nr

ea
liz

ed
 G

ai
n/

(L
os

s)
 O

n 
AF

S 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts

Pr
op

er
ty

 a
nd

 S
al

es
 T

ax U
nf

av
or

ab
le

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 1
2



5

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

as
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 3
1,

 2
02

2

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 1
2



6

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

as
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 3
1,

 2
02

2

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 8
 o

f 1
2



7

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

as
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 3
1,

 2
02

2

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 9
 o

f 1
2



8

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

as
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 3
1,

 2
02

2

N
O

N
-O

PE
RA

TI
N

G 
FU

N
D 

BA
LA

N
CE

S
(in

 T
ho

us
an

ds
)

CO
N

TI
N

GE
N

CY
RE

SE
RV

E
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

TA
X

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

es
: 1

/1
/2

2
$1

,1
14

$1
9,

16
8

($
66

)

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 &
 In

te
re

st
(1

0)
74

0
1,

04
9

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

0
32

1
1,

09
5

Cu
rr

en
t B

al
an

ce
s:

 1
/3

1/
22

$1
,1

04
$1

9,
58

7
($

11
2)

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 1
0 

of
 1

2



9

FU
N

D 
BA

LA
N

CE
S 

–
U

ni
te

d 
M

ut
ua

l

0

5,
00

0,
00

0

10
,0

00
,0

00

15
,0

00
,0

00

20
,0

00
,0

00

25
,0

00
,0

00

30
,0

00
,0

00

35
,0

00
,0

00

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

es
 F

un
d

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

Fu
nd

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t F

un
d

Av
er

ag
e 

Li
ne

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

as
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 3
1,

 2
02

2

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 1
1 

of
 1

2



10

RE
SA

LE
 H

IS
TO

RY
 –

U
ni

te
d 

M
ut

ua
l

0102030405060
# 

U
N

IT
S

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

as
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 3
1,

 2
02

2

N
O

. O
F

RE
SA

LE
S

AV
G

. R
ES

AL
E 

PR
IC

E

YT
D

20
20

23
$2

65
,2

30

YT
D

20
21

35
$2

57
,0

62

YT
D

20
22

38
$3

13
,2

92

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 1

2



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
REPORT OF THE REGULAR OPEN SESSION 

Tuesday, February 22, 2022 – 1:30 p.m.
Virtual Meeting 

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Azar Asgari – Chair, Lenny Ross, Pat English, Andre Torng

DIRECTORS ABSENT: None. 

ADVISORS PRESENT: Dick Rader

STAFF PRESENT: Steve Hormuth, Jose Campos, Erika Hernandez

OTHERS PRESENT: GRF – Juanita Skillman 

VMS – Cynthia Rupert 

Call to Order
Chair Azar Asgari, chaired the meeting and called it to order at 1:30p.m. 

Acknowledgment of Media 
The meeting was recorded and made available via Zoom for members of the community to participate 
virtually.  

Approval of Agenda 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to approve the agenda as presented with the following 
addition: 

Add Agenda Item # 11 – Financial Statement and Budget Training 

Approval of the Regular Meeting Report of January 25, 2022 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to approve the committee report as presented. 

Chair Remarks 
Chair Asgari stated the following: “In no time, we will start budgeting for 2023, and we all will hear the 
cliché words that cost of living has gone up so does HOA should go up. But let together think ahead 
of time about it. Are there actions to take by residents to keep the expenses down like not using extra 
water in different usage. Or are there any actions that VMS staff can take to save like not printing hard 
copy if it is not necessary or can staff get regular training for fixing problem at the first attempt. For 
example, to fix a leaking facet in my bathroom three different staff in three different time came. The 
point is why we don’t address the saving part in the budget. If VMS asking to add more staff what the 
financial benefit of it would be. A few years ago, When I hired a handy man to do the flooring in my 
unit I loved when in each step he informed me how much I can save by different choices. I hope this 
year with new leaders we will hear more about saving plans in parallel to the need of rising HOA in 
the budgeting”.  

Agenda Item #15a(2) 
Page 1 of 4



United Finance Committee Regular Open Meeting

February 22, 2022

Page 2 of 2
 
Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda)
A member of the community commented on the upcoming funding for the Landscape project to 
remove 393 Canary Island Pines. Steve Hormuth addressed her comments and proposed to have 
Kurt Wiemann, Director of Landscape, at the next Finance Committee meeting to provide details. In 
addition, Director Juanita Skillman from GRF invited the community to participate in the GRF 
Landscape Committee meeting on March 9, 2022 where details regarding the project will be 
discussed.  
 
Department Head Update 
Steve Hormuth, Director of Financial Services, provided updates on the 2021 Financial Audit.   
 
Review Preliminary Financial Statements dated January 31, 2022 
The committee reviewed financial statements for January 31, 2022 and questions were addressed.

Compensation and Outside Services 
The committee reviewed the report. No actions were requested or taken. 
 
Bank Negotiation Update  
Steve Hormuth and Jose Campos, Assistant Director of Financial Services, informed the 
committee that on February 4, 2022 they met with Bank of America to discuss a reduction in fees. 
Steve Hormuth shared that while the bank was unable to reduce fees beyond the reduction made 
in March 2021, they would once again review the fees and earnings credit rate once the Federal 
Reserve adjusts interest rates in March 2022.  

Reserve Study 
The committee reviewed the Reserves Expenditures Summary Report. The purpose of this report 
is to keep track of the monthly progress and ensure were on schedule with the recommendation of 
the Reserve Study Specialist.  
   
Financial Statement and Budget Training 
Steve Hormuth and Jose Campos presented an instructional tutorial on how to interpret the monthly 
financial statements and annual budget. Questions were addressed. 

Endorsements from Standing Committees
None. 

Future Agenda Items 
Investment Review – SageView Presentation
 
Committee Member Comments 
None.  
 
Date of Next Meeting 
Tuesday, March 29, 2022 at 1:30 p.m. 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item #15a(2) 
Page 2 of 4



United Finance Committee Regular Open Meeting

February 22, 2022

Page 2 of 2
 
Recess to Closed Session 
The meeting recessed to closed session at 3:47 p.m. 

 Azar Asgari, Chair 

Agenda Item #15a(2) 
Page 3 of 4



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #15a(2) 
Page 4 of 4



7797 $25,440,878 $330,401$365,108January $35,050,394
5868 $18,806,125 $324,244$367,197February $24,969,401

**75 $28,284,525 $377,127March *
**63 $22,499,399 $357,133April *
**85 $29,079,200 $342,108May *
**100 $40,080,488 $400,805June *
**107 $35,145,888 $328,466July *
**96 $33,947,600 $353,621August *
**102 $36,154,540 $354,456September *
**97 $35,344,800 $364,379October *
**100 $38,193,500 $381,935November *
**93 $34,632,450 $372,392December *

TOTAL 135.00 $44,247,003

MON AVG 67.00 $22,123,502 $327,322

165.00

82.00 $30,009,898

$60,019,795

$366,153

* Amount is excluded from percent calculation

% Change calculated (ThisYear - LastYear)/LastYear

Year to-date totals now include Mutual Fifty

ALL TOTAL 1053.00 $377,609,393165.00 $60,019,795

Monthly Resale Report
REPORT PERIOD

February, 2022All MutualsCommunity Services Department

MUTUALPREPARED BY

NO. OF RESALES TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE
MONTH LAST YEARTHIS YEAR LAST YEAR LAST YEARTHIS YEAR THIS YEAR

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: of1Page 103/02/2022

Agenda Item #15a(3) 
Page 1 of 14



R
es

al
es

 - 
5 

Ye
ar

 C
om

pa
ris

on

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

M
on

th

0122436486072849610
8

12
0

No.Of Units

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

R
es

al
es

 5
-Y

r C
om

pa
ris

on
 - 

Al
l M

ut
ua

ls
Pa

ge
 1

03
/0

2/
20

22
 0

4:
54

A
LL

 M
U

TU
A

LS

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

3)
 

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 1
4



3538 $8,997,153 $257,062$313,292January $11,905,094
2640 $6,846,600 $263,331$296,610February $11,864,401

**27 $6,978,425 $258,460March *
**36 $9,605,499 $266,819April *
**41 $10,258,400 $250,205May *
**47 $13,580,100 $288,938June *
**57 $16,700,700 $292,995July *
**53 $15,529,600 $293,011August *
**49 $15,157,100 $309,329September *
**41 $12,259,900 $299,022October *
**49 $13,969,200 $285,086November *
**47 $14,364,950 $305,637December *

TOTAL 61.00 $15,843,753

MON AVG 30.00 $7,921,877 $260,196

78.00

39.00 $11,884,748

$23,769,495

$304,951

% CHANGE -
YTD

27.9% 50.0% 17.2%

% Change calculated (ThisYear - LastYear)/LastYear
* Amount is excluded from percent calculation

ALL TOTAL 508.00 $144,247,62778.00 $23,769,495

Monthly Resale Report
REPORT PERIOD

February, 2022UnitedCommunity Services Department

MUTUALPREPARED BY

NO. OF RESALES TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE
MONTH LAST YEARTHIS YEAR LAST YEAR LAST YEARTHIS YEAR THIS YEAR

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: of1Page 103/02/2022

Agenda Item #15a(3) 
Page 3 of 14



R
es

al
es

 - 
5 

Ye
ar

 C
om

pa
ris

on

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

M
on

th

07142128354249566370 No.Of Units

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

R
es

al
es

 5
-Y

r C
om

pa
ris

on
 - 

U
ni

te
d 

La
gu

na
 W

oo
ds

 M
ut

ua
l

Pa
ge

 1
03

/0
2/

20
22

 0
5:

09

U
N

IT
ED

 M
U

TU
A

L

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

3)
 

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 1
4



P
R

EP
A

R
ED

 B
Y

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

Se
rv

ic
e

s 
D

e
p

ar
tm

e
n

t
Fe

b
-2

2

M
o

n
th

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
0

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
0

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
0

2
0

1
9

Ja
n

u
ar

y
3

8
3

5
2

3
2

2
$

1
1

,9
0

5
,0

9
4

$
8

,9
9

7
,1

5
3

$
6

,1
0

0
,3

0
0

$
5

,2
8

2
,1

5
0

$
3

1
3

,2
9

2
$

2
5

7
,0

6
2

$
2

6
5

,2
3

0
$

2
4

0
,0

9
8

Fe
b

ru
ar

y
4

0
2

6
2

7
1

7
$

1
1

,8
6

4
,4

0
1

$
6

,8
4

6
,6

0
0

$
6

,3
7

5
,2

0
0

$
4

,2
5

6
,1

5
0

$
2

9
6

,6
1

0
$

2
6

3
,3

3
1

$
2

3
6

,1
1

9
$

2
5

0
,3

6
2

M
ar

ch
2

7
3

1
2

1
$

6
,9

7
8

,4
2

5
$

7
,8

6
3

,5
0

0
$

6
,3

5
5

,0
0

0
$

2
5

8
,4

6
0

$
2

5
3

,6
6

1
$

3
0

2
,6

1
9

A
p

ri
l

3
6

3
1

3
3

$
9

,6
0

5
,4

9
9

$
7

,2
0

9
,4

8
8

$
9

,2
9

2
,0

5
1

$
2

6
6

,8
1

9
$

2
3

2
,5

6
4

$
2

8
1

,5
7

7

M
ay

4
1

1
8

2
7

$
1

0
,2

5
8

,4
0

0
$

4
,5

2
3

,5
0

0
$

6
,3

8
0

,5
0

3
$

2
5

0
,2

0
5

$
2

5
1

,3
0

6
$

2
3

6
,3

1
5

Ju
n

e
4

7
2

3
4

0
$

1
3

,5
8

0
,1

0
0

$
6

,1
7

4
,8

9
9

$
1

0
,2

9
7

,7
9

0
$

2
8

8
,9

3
8

$
2

6
8

,4
7

4
$

2
5

7
,4

4
5

Ju
ly

5
7

2
0

3
7

$
1

6
,7

0
0

,7
0

0
$

5
,2

7
4

,5
0

0
$

9
,1

8
9

,8
0

0
$

2
9

2
,9

9
5

$
2

6
3

,7
2

5
$

2
4

8
,3

7
3

A
u

gu
st

5
3

2
6

3
9

$
1

5
,5

2
9

,6
0

0
$

6
,9

0
9

,3
0

0
$

1
0

,0
1

8
,6

0
0

$
2

9
3

,0
1

1
$

2
6

5
,7

4
2

$
2

5
6

,8
8

7

Se
p

te
m

b
er

4
9

3
1

2
7

$
1

5
,1

5
7

,1
0

0
$

7
,7

7
4

,5
0

0
$

7
,3

2
8

,9
0

0
$

3
0

9
,3

2
9

$
2

5
0

,7
9

0
$

2
7

1
,4

4
1

O
ct

o
b

er
4

1
3

4
4

2
$

1
2

,2
5

9
,9

0
0

$
9

,9
8

2
,4

0
0

$
1

0
,2

2
0

,4
0

0
$

2
9

9
,0

2
2

$
2

9
3

,6
0

0
$

2
4

3
,3

4
3

N
o

ve
m

b
er

4
9

2
6

2
1

$
1

3
,9

6
9

,2
0

0
$

6
,4

6
9

,3
8

8
$

5
,0

6
5

,5
0

0
$

2
8

5
,0

8
6

$
2

4
8

,8
2

3
$

2
4

1
,2

1
4

D
ec

em
b

er
4

7
4

3
4

0
$

1
4

,3
6

4
,9

5
0

$
1

0
,8

9
6

,5
6

0
$

9
,1

7
5

,8
0

0
$

3
0

5
,6

3
7

$
2

5
3

,4
0

8
$

2
2

9
,3

9
5

TO
TA

L
7

8
6

1
5

0
3

9
$

2
3

,7
6

9
,4

9
5

$
1

5
,8

4
3

,7
5

3
$

1
2

,4
7

5
,5

0
0

$
9

,5
3

8
,3

0
0

A
LL

 T
O

TA
L

7
8

5
0

8
3

3
3

3
6

6
$

2
3

,7
6

9
,4

9
5

$
1

4
4

,2
4

7
,6

2
7

$
8

5
,5

5
3

,5
3

5
$

9
2

,8
6

2
,6

4
4

M
O

N
 A

V
G

3
9

3
1

2
5

2
0

$
1

1
,8

8
4

,7
4

8
$

7
,9

2
1

,8
7

7
$

6
,2

3
7

,7
5

0
$

4
,7

6
9

,1
5

0
$

3
0

4
,9

5
1

$
2

6
0

,1
9

7
$

2
5

0
,6

7
5

$
2

4
5

,2
3

0

%
 C

H
A

N
G

E-
YT

D
2

7
.9

%
2

2
.0

%
2

8
.2

%
-4

6
.6

%
5

0
.0

%
2

7
.0

%
3

0
.8

%
-4

5
.4

%
1

7
.2

%
3

.8
%

2
.2

%
2

.3
%

%
 C

h
an

ge
 c

al
cu

la
te

d
 (

Th
is

 Y
ea

r 
- 

La
st

 Y
ea

r)
/L

as
t 

Ye
ar

P
er

ce
n

t 
ca

lc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

ly
 in

cl
u

d
es

 Y
TD

 f
ig

u
re

s 
in

 b
la

ck
. 

M
o

n
th

ly
 R

e
sa

le
 R

e
p

o
rt

 U
n

it
e

d
 M

u
tu

al

N
U

M
B

ER
 O

F 
R

ES
A

LE
S

TO
TA

L 
SA

LE
S 

V
O

LU
M

E 
IN

 $
$

A
V

G
 R

ES
A

LE
 P

R
IC

E 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

3)
 

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 1
4



02
/1

0/
20

22
La

gu
na

 W
oo

ds
 V

illa
ge

 R
ea

lty
G

ra
ni

te
 E

sc
ro

w
18

-H
1

TB
D

M
aj

or
ca

$2
80

,0
00

02
/1

1/
20

22
La

gu
na

 P
re

m
ie

r R
ea

lty
, I

nc
Bl

ue
 P

ac
ifi

c 
Es

cr
ow

57
-H

1
La

gu
na

 P
re

m
ie

r R
ea

lty
, I

nc
M

aj
or

ca
$2

57
,5

00
02

/0
7/

20
22

Be
ve

rly
 R

ea
lty

G
ra

ni
te

 E
sc

ro
w

84
-E

1
H

om
eS

m
ar

t E
ve

rg
re

en
M

aj
or

ca
$3

89
,9

00
02

/1
4/

20
22

R
eg

en
cy

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e

Bl
ue

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Es
cr

ow
89

-B
1

La
gu

na
 P

re
m

ie
r R

ea
lty

, I
nc

G
ra

na
da

$3
51

,5
00

02
/1

7/
20

22
FS

BO
G

en
er

at
io

ns
 E

sc
ro

w
10

7-
R

1
FS

BO
C

as
a 

Bl
an

ca
$1

02
/2

2/
20

22
Ke

lle
r W

illi
am

s 
R

ea
l E

st
at

e
G

ra
ni

te
 E

sc
ro

w
12

6-
F

1
Ke

lle
r W

illi
am

s 
R

ea
l E

st
at

e
M

aj
or

ca
$2

75
,0

00
02

/2
5/

20
22

C
en

tu
ry

 2
1 

R
ai

nb
ow

C
or

ne
r E

sc
ro

w
 In

c.
14

4-
B

1
R

es
id

en
tia

l A
ge

nt
 In

c.
La

 C
or

on
a

$3
60

,0
00

02
/1

1/
20

22
C

en
tu

ry
 2

1 
R

ai
nb

ow
C

or
ne

r E
sc

ro
w

 In
c.

18
4-

A
1

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

's
 B

ro
ke

r
C

ad
iz

$2
00

,0
00

02
/0

3/
20

22
Fi

rs
t T

ea
m

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e

G
en

er
at

io
ns

 E
sc

ro
w

21
2-

P
1

1%
 L

is
tin

g 
Br

ok
er

C
ad

iz
$1

55
,0

00
02

/0
7/

20
22

La
gu

na
 P

re
m

ie
r R

ea
lty

, I
nc

Bl
ue

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Es
cr

ow
22

6-
D

1
La

gu
na

 P
re

m
ie

r R
ea

lty
, I

nc
M

aj
or

ca
$2

42
,5

00
02

/0
7/

20
22

Se
ve

n 
G

ab
le

s 
R

ea
l E

st
at

e
Bl

ue
 P

ac
ifi

c 
Es

cr
ow

24
1-

B
1

Be
rk

sh
ire

 H
at

ha
w

ay
Va

le
nc

ia
$3

59
,0

00
02

/2
4/

20
22

La
gu

na
 P

re
m

ie
r R

ea
lty

, I
nc

G
ra

ni
te

 E
sc

ro
w

25
7-

C
1

H
om

eS
m

ar
t E

ve
rg

re
en

Se
vi

lle
$3

60
,0

00
02

/0
8/

20
22

C
ol

dw
el

l B
an

ke
r

C
or

ne
r E

sc
ro

w
 In

c.
27

2-
C

1
H

ar
co

ur
ts

 P
rim

e 
Pr

op
er

tie
s

M
aj

or
ca

$2
40

,5
00

02
/0

7/
20

22
Vi

lla
ge

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e

C
or

ne
r E

sc
ro

w
 In

c.
40

0-
A

1
M

cG
ui

re
 T

ea
m

 R
e/

M
ax

 S
el

ec
t O

ne
C

ad
iz

$2
35

,0
00

02
/1

6/
20

22
Fi

rs
t T

ea
m

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e

Bl
ue

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Es
cr

ow
43

8-
C

1
R

eg
en

cy
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
C

or
do

ba
$3

22
,0

00
02

/1
0/

20
22

La
gu

na
 P

re
m

ie
r R

ea
lty

, I
nc

Bl
ue

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Es
cr

ow
43

9-
D

1
Al

st
on

, A
ls

to
n 

& 
D

ie
bo

ld
C

or
do

ba
$3

17
,0

00
02

/2
3/

20
22

La
gu

na
 P

re
m

ie
r R

ea
lty

, I
nc

Bl
ue

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Es
cr

ow
44

7-
E

1
R

es
id

en
tia

l A
ge

nt
 In

c.
G

ra
na

da
$3

00
,0

00
02

/1
5/

20
22

C
ol

dw
el

l B
an

ke
r

G
ra

ni
te

 E
sc

ro
w

46
3-

D
1

La
gu

na
 W

oo
ds

 V
illa

ge
 R

ea
lty

M
aj

or
ca

$4
31

,0
00

02
/1

6/
20

22
W

is
e 

C
ho

ic
es

 R
ea

lty
Bl

ue
 P

ac
ifi

c 
Es

cr
ow

46
4-

C
1

W
is

e 
C

ho
ic

es
 R

ea
lty

M
aj

or
ca

$1
75

,0
00

02
/1

5/
20

22
W

eb
sc

o 
Br

ok
er

G
ra

ni
te

 E
sc

ro
w

54
1-

H
1

La
gu

na
 W

oo
ds

 V
illa

ge
 R

ea
lty

G
ra

na
da

$4
50

,0
00

02
/1

8/
20

22
La

gu
na

 P
re

m
ie

r R
ea

lty
, I

nc
G

ra
ni

te
 E

sc
ro

w
59

4-
C

1
C

en
tu

ry
 2

1 
R

ai
nb

ow
Va

le
nc

ia
$4

30
,0

00
02

/0
9/

20
22

Th
e 

Sh
ire

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

G
ro

up
Bl

ue
 P

ac
ifi

c 
Es

cr
ow

62
2-

Q
1

Ja
m

es
 H

ah
n,

 B
ro

ke
r

C
as

a 
Li

nd
a

$2
79

,0
00

02
/0

1/
20

22
J2

4 
R

ea
lty

G
ra

ni
te

 E
sc

ro
w

70
5-

D
1

eX
p 

R
ea

lty
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
Va

le
nc

ia
$3

05
,0

00
02

/1
0/

20
22

H
om

eS
m

ar
t E

ve
rg

re
en

G
ra

ni
te

 E
sc

ro
w

71
3-

C
1

H
om

eS
m

ar
t E

ve
rg

re
en

Va
le

nc
ia

$3
10

,0
00

02
/1

7/
20

22
La

gu
na

 P
re

m
ie

r R
ea

lty
, I

nc
Bl

ue
 P

ac
ifi

c 
Es

cr
ow

78
2-

O
1

C
en

tu
ry

 2
1 

Aw
ar

d
C

as
a 

Li
nd

a
$4

35
,0

00

U
ni

te
d 

La
gu

na
 W

oo
ds

 M
ut

ua
l

R
es

al
es

 R
ep

or
t

Fe
br

ua
ry

, 2
02

2

M
an

or
Es

cr
ow

B
uy

er
 R

ea
lto

r
C

lo
se

Pr
ic

e
M

od
el

/S
ty

le
Li

st
in

g 
R

ea
lto

r
M

ut
ua

l

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

s 
of

:
1

Pa
ge

2
of

03
/0

2/
20

22

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

3)
 

Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 1
4



02
/1

7/
20

22
FS

BO
C

or
ne

r E
sc

ro
w

 In
c.

79
9-

B
1

M
ar

k 
C

ar
ls

on
, B

ro
ke

r
La

 C
or

on
a

$3
00

,0
00

02
/0

8/
20

22
FS

BO
G

ra
ni

te
 E

sc
ro

w
80

0-
A

1
FS

BO
La

 C
or

on
a

$2
50

,0
00

02
/0

3/
20

22
eX

p 
R

ea
lty

 o
f C

al
ifo

rn
ia

Bl
ue

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Es
cr

ow
81

0-
O

1
La

gu
na

 P
re

m
ie

r R
ea

lty
, I

nc
C

as
a 

C
on

te
nt

a
$3

27
,5

00

02
/0

7/
20

22
Vi

lla
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
G

ra
ni

te
 E

sc
ro

w
86

4-
O

1
IG

 R
ea

lty
C

as
a 

C
on

te
nt

a
$2

14
,0

00

02
/1

8/
20

22
R

es
id

en
tia

l A
ge

nt
 In

c.
G

en
er

at
io

ns
 E

sc
ro

w
86

9-
C

1
R

es
id

en
tia

l A
ge

nt
 In

c.
Sa

n 
Se

ba
st

ia
n

$2
79

,0
00

02
/0

8/
20

22
Vi

lla
ge

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e

G
ra

ni
te

 E
sc

ro
w

89
3-

D
1

C
as

a 
C

on
te

nt
a

$3
30

,0
00

02
/1

7/
20

22
Am

er
ic

an
 B

ea
ch

si
de

Es
cr

ow
 O

pt
io

ns
 G

ro
up

90
9-

P
1

H
om

eS
m

ar
t E

ve
rg

re
en

C
as

a 
Li

nd
a

$3
35

,0
00

02
/0

8/
20

22
R

eg
en

cy
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
Br

ok
er

s
G

en
er

at
io

ns
 E

sc
ro

w
94

1-
E

1
R

ea
lty

 O
ne

 G
ro

up
 W

es
t

G
ra

na
da

$3
35

,0
00

02
/1

7/
20

22
Ke

lle
r W

illi
am

s 
R

ea
l E

st
at

e
Pr

ef
er

re
d 

Es
cr

ow
20

36
-D

1
Ke

lle
r W

illi
am

s 
R

ea
l E

st
at

e
Va

le
nc

ia
$2

50
,0

00
02

/0
4/

20
22

La
gu

na
 P

re
m

ie
r R

ea
lty

, I
nc

Bl
ue

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Es
cr

ow
20

65
-B

1
JD

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e

Va
le

nc
ia

$3
17

,5
00

02
/0

4/
20

22
Vi

lla
ge

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

C
or

ne
r E

sc
ro

w
 In

c.
20

67
-D

1
O

ra
ng

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
R

ea
l E

st
at

e
Va

le
nc

ia
$3

10
,0

00
02

/2
4/

20
22

La
gu

na
 P

re
m

ie
r R

ea
lty

, I
nc

Bl
ue

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Es
cr

ow
21

03
-R

1
R

E/
PR

O
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
M

on
te

re
y

$2
44

,0
00

02
/1

8/
20

22
R

em
ax

 T
iff

an
y

In
te

gr
a 

Es
cr

ow
21

43
-O

1
H

om
eS

m
ar

t E
ve

rg
re

en
C

as
a 

C
on

te
nt

a
$2

36
,0

00

02
/2

4/
20

22
Vi

lla
ge

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e

C
or

ne
r E

sc
ro

w
 In

c.
22

09
-D

1
H

om
eS

m
ar

t E
ve

rg
re

en
Va

le
nc

ia
$3

50
,0

00
02

/2
8/

20
22

C
en

tu
ry

 2
1 

R
ai

nb
ow

G
en

er
at

io
ns

 E
sc

ro
w

22
17

-Q
1

R
eM

ax
 U

ni
ve

rs
al

 R
ea

lty
C

as
a 

C
on

te
nt

a
$3

26
,5

00

To
ta

l R
es

al
e 

Pr
ic

e:

N
um

be
r o

f R
es

al
es

:

Av
er

ag
e 

R
es

al
e 

Pr
ic

e:
$2

96
,6

1040

$1
1,

86
4,

40
1

M
ed

ia
n 

R
es

al
e 

Pr
ic

e:
$3

07
,5

00

U
ni

te
d 

La
gu

na
 W

oo
ds

 M
ut

ua
l

R
es

al
es

 R
ep

or
t

Fe
br

ua
ry

, 2
02

2

M
an

or
Es

cr
ow

B
uy

er
 R

ea
lto

r
C

lo
se

Pr
ic

e
M

od
el

/S
ty

le
Li

st
in

g 
R

ea
lto

r
M

ut
ua

l

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

s 
of

:
2

Pa
ge

2
of

03
/0

2/
20

22

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

3)
 

Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 1
4



4151 $16,433,725 $400,823$446,851January $22,789,400
3025 $11,904,525 $396,818$507,520February $12,688,000

**44 $20,903,100 $475,070March *
**26 $12,851,400 $494,285April *
**40 $18,741,800 $468,545May *
**49 $25,804,388 $526,620June *
**41 $17,901,388 $436,619July *
**38 $18,292,000 $481,368August *
**45 $20,638,940 $458,643September *
**51 $22,829,400 $447,635October *
**46 $23,744,300 $516,180November *
**44 $20,172,500 $458,466December *

TOTAL 71.00 $28,338,250

MON AVG 35.00 $14,169,125 $398,820

76.00

38.00 $17,738,700

$35,477,400

$477,185

% CHANGE -
YTD

7.0% 25.2% 19.6%

% Change calculated (ThisYear - LastYear)/LastYear
* Amount is excluded from percent calculation

ALL TOTAL 495.00 $230,217,46676.00 $35,477,400

Monthly Resale Report
REPORT PERIOD

February, 2022ThirdCommunity Services Department

MUTUALPREPARED BY

NO. OF RESALES TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE
MONTH LAST YEARTHIS YEAR LAST YEAR LAST YEARTHIS YEAR THIS YEAR

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: of1Page 103/02/2022

Agenda Item #15a(3) 
Page 8 of 14



R
es

al
es

 - 
5 

Ye
ar

 C
om

pa
ris

on

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

M
on

th

06121824303642485460 No.Of Units

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

R
es

al
es

 5
-Y

r C
om

pa
ris

on
 - 

Th
ird

 L
ag

un
a 

H
ills

 M
ut

ua
l

Pa
ge

 1
03

/0
2/

20
22

 0
5:

15

TH
IR

D
 M

U
TU

A
L

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

3)
 

Pa
ge

 9
 o

f 1
4



P
R

EP
A

R
ED

 B
Y

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

Se
rv

ic
e

s 
D

e
p

ar
tm

e
n

t
Fe

b
-2

2

M
o

n
th

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
0

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
0

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
0

2
0

1
9

Ja
n

u
ar

y
5

1
4

1
2

4
3

2
$

2
2

,7
8

9
,4

0
0

$
1

6
,4

3
3

,7
2

5
$

1
0

,0
1

5
,0

0
0

$
1

2
,4

8
2

,1
0

0
$

4
4

6
,8

5
1

$
4

0
0

,8
2

3
$

4
1

7
,2

9
2

$
3

9
0

,0
6

6

Fe
b

ru
ar

y
2

5
3

0
2

6
2

5
$

1
2

,6
8

8
,0

0
0

$
1

1
,9

0
4

,5
2

5
$

1
2

,1
5

8
,7

0
0

$
1

0
,2

0
8

,0
0

0
$

5
0

7
,5

2
0

$
3

9
6

,8
1

8
$

4
6

7
,6

4
2

$
4

0
8

,3
2

0

M
ar

ch
4

4
3

2
4

2
$

2
0

,9
0

3
,1

0
0

$
1

3
,9

4
6

,4
1

6
$

1
6

,6
3

9
,7

1
2

$
4

7
5

,0
7

0
$

4
3

5
,8

2
6

$
3

9
6

,1
8

4

A
p

ri
l

2
6

2
5

2
5

$
1

2
,8

5
1

,4
0

0
$

1
0

,8
3

0
,8

3
3

$
1

0
,4

3
5

,5
0

0
$

4
9

4
,2

8
5

$
4

3
3

,2
3

3
$

4
1

7
,4

2
0

M
ay

4
0

1
6

3
7

$
1

8
,7

4
1

,8
0

0
$

5
,6

0
4

,0
0

0
$

1
6

,2
7

3
,0

3
3

$
4

6
8

,5
4

5
$

3
5

0
,2

5
0

$
4

3
9

,8
1

2

Ju
n

e
4

9
1

5
2

5
$

2
5

,8
0

4
,3

8
8

$
5

,8
8

1
,5

0
0

$
1

0
,2

9
0

,0
0

0
$

5
2

6
,6

2
0

$
3

9
2

,1
0

0
$

4
1

1
,6

0
0

Ju
ly

4
1

3
6

4
0

$
1

7
,9

0
1

,3
8

8
$

1
5

,2
4

0
,2

4
8

$
1

7
,3

2
7

,3
7

3
$

4
3

6
,6

1
9

$
4

2
3

,3
4

0
$

4
3

3
,1

8
4

A
u

gu
st

3
8

3
3

3
8

$
1

8
,2

9
2

,0
0

0
$

1
4

,6
1

2
,9

2
8

$
1

5
,9

9
4

,9
0

0
$

4
8

1
,3

6
8

$
4

4
2

,8
1

6
$

4
2

0
,9

1
8

Se
p

te
m

b
er

4
5

3
0

3
3

$
2

0
,6

3
8

,9
4

0
$

1
4

,3
1

4
,1

0
0

$
1

2
,6

4
3

,1
8

0
$

4
5

8
,6

4
3

$
4

7
7

,1
3

7
$

3
8

3
,1

2
7

O
ct

o
b

er
5

1
2

8
4

1
$

2
2

,8
2

9
,4

0
0

$
1

0
,7

0
7

,4
0

0
$

1
6

,1
4

2
,9

0
0

$
4

4
7

,6
3

5
$

3
8

2
,4

0
7

$
3

9
3

,7
2

9

N
o

ve
m

b
er

4
6

2
8

3
0

$
2

3
,7

4
4

,3
0

0
$

1
1

,0
5

7
,3

0
0

$
1

3
,5

2
0

,9
5

0
$

5
1

6
,1

8
0

$
3

9
4

,9
0

4
$

4
5

0
,6

9
8

D
ec

em
b

er
4

4
4

6
3

9
$

2
0

,1
7

2
,5

0
0

$
1

8
,5

4
8

,9
0

1
$

1
8

,3
1

9
,8

0
0

$
4

5
8

,4
6

6
$

4
0

3
,2

3
7

$
4

6
9

,7
3

8

TO
TA

L
7

6
7

1
5

0
5

7
$

3
5

,4
7

7
,4

0
0

$
2

8
,3

3
8

,2
5

0
$

2
2

,1
7

3
,7

0
0

$
2

2
,6

9
0

,1
0

0

A
LL

 T
O

TA
L

7
6

4
9

5
3

3
9

4
0

7
$

3
5

,4
7

7
,4

0
0

$
2

3
0

,2
1

7
,4

6
6

$
1

4
2

,9
1

7
,3

2
6

$
1

7
0

,2
7

7
,4

4
8

M
O

N
 A

V
G

3
8

.0
3

5
.5

2
5

.0
2

8
.5

$
1

7
,7

3
8

,7
0

0
$

1
4

,1
6

9
,1

2
5

$
1

1
,0

8
6

,8
5

0
$

1
1

,3
4

5
,0

5
0

$
4

7
7

,1
8

6
$

3
9

8
,8

2
1

$
4

4
2

,4
6

7
$

3
9

9
,1

9
3

%
 C

H
A

N
G

E-
YT

D
7

.0
%

4
2

.0
%

-1
2

.3
%

-1
3

.6
%

2
5

.2
%

2
7

.8
%

-2
.3

%
-7

.0
%

1
9

.6
%

-9
.9

%
1

0
.8

%
8

.6
%

%
 C

h
an

ge
 c

al
cu

la
te

d
 (

Th
is

 Y
ea

r 
- 

La
st

 Y
ea

r)
/L

as
t 

Ye
ar

P
er

ce
n

t 
ca

lc
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
n

ly
 in

cl
u

d
es

 Y
TD

 f
ig

u
re

s 
in

 b
la

ck
. 

M
o

n
th

ly
 R

e
sa

le
 R

e
p

o
rt

 T
h

ir
d

 M
u

tu
al

N
U

M
B

ER
 O

F 
R

ES
A

LE
S

TO
TA

L 
SA

LE
S 

V
O

LU
M

E 
IN

 $
$

A
V

G
 R

ES
A

LE
 P

R
IC

E 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

3)
 

Pa
ge

 1
0 

of
 1

4



02
/2

4/
20

22
R

ea
lty

 S
ou

rc
e,

 In
c.

Bl
ue

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Es
cr

ow
96

4-
D

3
H

om
eS

m
ar

t E
ve

rg
re

en
M

on
te

re
y

$3
80

,0
00

02
/0

2/
20

22
Sh

or
el

in
e 

Pr
op

er
tie

s
C

or
ne

r E
sc

ro
w

 In
c.

22
72

-D
3

R
ed

fin
Va

le
nc

ia
$4

90
,0

00
02

/0
9/

20
22

La
gu

na
 P

re
m

ie
r R

ea
lty

, I
nc

G
ra

ni
te

 E
sc

ro
w

23
00

-N
3

H
om

eS
m

ar
t E

ve
rg

re
en

C
as

a 
C

on
te

nt
a

$2
45

,0
00

02
/1

4/
20

22
C

en
tu

ry
 2

1 
As

tro
C

or
ne

r E
sc

ro
w

 In
c.

23
40

-O
3

C
en

tu
ry

 2
1 

R
ai

nb
ow

C
as

a 
Li

nd
a

$5
55

,0
00

02
/2

5/
20

22
So

ut
h 

W
es

t R
ea

lty
C

or
ne

r E
sc

ro
w

 In
c.

23
41

-A
3

Fi
rs

t T
ea

m
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
Sa

n 
Se

ba
st

ia
n

$2
75

,0
00

02
/1

5/
20

22
C

en
tu

ry
 2

1 
As

tro
C

or
ne

r E
sc

ro
w

 In
c.

23
72

-D
3

C
en

tu
ry

 2
1 

As
tro

Va
le

nc
ia

$5
65

,0
00

02
/0

4/
20

22
C

en
tu

ry
 2

1 
R

ai
nb

ow
C

or
ne

r E
sc

ro
w

 In
c.

23
85

-3
C

3
C

en
tu

ry
 2

1 
R

ai
nb

ow
G

ar
de

n 
Vi

lla
$2

90
,0

00
02

/1
1/

20
22

La
gu

na
 P

re
m

ie
r R

ea
lty

, I
nc

Bl
ue

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Es
cr

ow
24

03
-1

B
3

Ba
lb

oa
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
Vi

lla
 C

ap
ri

$3
45

,0
00

02
/0

8/
20

22
Pa

ci
fic

 S
ot

he
by

's
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l

C
or

ne
r E

sc
ro

w
 In

c.
30

88
-B

3
C

ol
dw

el
l B

an
ke

r B
es

t R
ea

lty
H

er
m

os
a

$4
25

,0
00

02
/0

9/
20

22
La

gu
na

 P
re

m
ie

r R
ea

lty
, I

nc
Bl

ue
 P

ac
ifi

c 
Es

cr
ow

31
10

-C
3

C
ol

dw
el

l B
an

ke
r

La
 B

ris
a

$4
08

,0
00

02
/1

4/
20

22
Ka

tn
ik

 B
ro

th
er

s 
R

.E
.S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
or

p.
C

or
ne

r E
sc

ro
w

 In
c.

31
49

-C
3

U
ni

ti 
R

ea
lty

La
 R

ei
na

$7
00

,0
00

02
/2

4/
20

22
La

gu
na

 P
re

m
ie

r R
ea

lty
, I

nc
Bl

ue
 P

ac
ifi

c 
Es

cr
ow

31
76

-D
3

La
gu

na
 P

re
m

ie
r R

ea
lty

, I
nc

La
 R

ei
na

$9
00

,0
00

02
/1

7/
20

22
FS

BO
C

or
ne

r E
sc

ro
w

 In
c.

31
79

-A
3

FS
BO

La
 P

rin
ce

sa
$3

75
,0

00
02

/1
6/

20
22

La
gu

na
 P

re
m

ie
r R

ea
lty

, I
nc

Bl
ue

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Es
cr

ow
32

14
-C

3
C

en
tu

ry
 2

1 
R

ai
nb

ow
La

 R
ei

na
$6

95
,0

00
02

/1
8/

20
22

La
gu

na
 P

re
m

ie
r R

ea
lty

, I
nc

C
or

ne
r E

sc
ro

w
 In

c.
33

65
-2

F
3

M
ar

k 
C

ar
ls

on
, B

ro
ke

r
Si

er
ra

$1
95

,0
00

02
/0

1/
20

22
R

ob
er

t G
an

em
, B

ro
ke

r
Es

cr
ow

 L
ea

de
rs

33
68

-O
3

C
en

tu
ry

 2
1 

R
ai

nb
ow

C
at

al
in

a
$5

50
,0

00
02

/2
4/

20
22

H
om

eS
m

ar
t E

ve
rg

re
en

Es
cr

ow
 O

pt
io

ns
 G

ro
up

34
21

-1
D

3
H

om
eS

m
ar

t E
ve

rg
re

en
C

as
a 

D
or

ad
o

$4
10

,0
00

02
/0

8/
20

22
C

en
tu

ry
 2

1 
R

ai
nb

ow
C

or
ne

r E
sc

ro
w

 In
c.

35
07

-A
3

Pr
es

id
en

tia
l R

ea
l E

st
at

e
C

as
a 

R
os

a
$8

00
,0

00
02

/1
5/

20
22

La
gu

na
 P

re
m

ie
r R

ea
lty

, I
nc

Bl
ue

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Es
cr

ow
35

10
-3

B
3

Ke
lle

r W
illi

am
s 

R
ea

lty
 Ir

vi
ne

Vi
lla

 N
ue

va
$3

40
,0

00
02

/1
6/

20
22

Ja
ck

 W
al

la
ce

Th
e 

Es
cr

ow
 F

irm
40

01
-2

C
3

Su
rte

rre
 P

ro
pe

rti
es

, I
nc

.
Vi

lla
 N

ue
va

$3
05

,0
00

02
/2

4/
20

22
Al

ta
 R

ea
lty

 G
ro

up
 C

A 
In

c
G

ra
ni

te
 E

sc
ro

w
40

03
-3

B
3

R
ea

lty
 B

en
ef

it
Vi

lla
 N

ue
va

$4
10

,0
00

02
/2

5/
20

22
C

om
pa

ss
G

ra
ni

te
 E

sc
ro

w
53

45
-A

3
eX

p 
R

ea
lty

 o
f C

al
ifo

rn
ia

El
 D

ob
le

$6
50

,0
00

02
/1

5/
20

22
C

en
tu

ry
 2

1 
R

ai
nb

ow
G

ra
ni

te
 E

sc
ro

w
53

64
-Q

3
C

en
tu

ry
 2

1 
R

ai
nb

ow
La

 B
ris

a
$3

80
,0

00

Th
ird

 L
ag

un
a 

H
ill

s 
M

ut
ua

l
R

es
al

es
 R

ep
or

t

Fe
br

ua
ry

, 2
02

2

M
an

or
Es

cr
ow

B
uy

er
 R

ea
lto

r
C

lo
se

Pr
ic

e
M

od
el

/S
ty

le
Li

st
in

g 
R

ea
lto

r
M

ut
ua

l

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

s 
of

:
1

Pa
ge

2
of

03
/0

2/
20

22

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

3)
 

Pa
ge

 1
1 

of
 1

4



02
/2

5/
20

22
R

ob
er

t S
ch

ae
fe

r
G

en
er

at
io

ns
 E

sc
ro

w
55

26
-C

3
R

ob
er

t S
ch

ae
fe

r
El

 P
ra

do
$6

00
,0

00
02

/2
2/

20
22

C
en

tu
ry

 2
1 

R
ai

nb
ow

C
or

ne
r E

sc
ro

w
 In

c.
55

56
-A

3
La

gu
na

 P
re

m
ie

r R
ea

lty
, I

nc
C

as
a 

Pa
lm

a
$1

,4
00

,0
00

To
ta

l R
es

al
e 

Pr
ic

e:

N
um

be
r o

f R
es

al
es

:

Av
er

ag
e 

R
es

al
e 

Pr
ic

e:
$5

07
,5

2025

$1
2,

68
8,

00
0

M
ed

ia
n 

R
es

al
e 

Pr
ic

e:
$4

10
,0

00

Th
ird

 L
ag

un
a 

H
ill

s 
M

ut
ua

l
R

es
al

es
 R

ep
or

t

Fe
br

ua
ry

, 2
02

2

M
an

or
Es

cr
ow

B
uy

er
 R

ea
lto

r
C

lo
se

Pr
ic

e
M

od
el

/S
ty

le
Li

st
in

g 
R

ea
lto

r
M

ut
ua

l

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

s 
of

:
2

Pa
ge

2
of

03
/0

2/
20

22

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

3)
 

Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 1

4



M
on

th
ly

 A
ct

iv
e 

Le
as

in
g 

R
ep

or
t

20
2

2 
P

er
io

d
 2

 (
M

u
tu

al
 1

)

20
22

Ja
nu

ar
y

19
32

62
2

66
1

40
7

20
3

20
10

.5
40

9.
8

0.
7

20
22

F
eb

ru
ar

y
17

30
61

9
66

4
39

8
21

9
29

10
.5

50
9.

8
0.

7

20
22

M
ar

ch
63

1

20
22

A
pr

il
61

4

20
22

M
ay

60
5

20
22

Ju
ne

62
7

20
22

Ju
ly

62
1

20
22

A
ug

us
t

62
9

20
22

S
ep

te
m

be
r

63
3

20
22

O
ct

ob
er

63
3

20
22

N
ov

em
be

r
64

6

20
22

D
ec

em
be

r
65

3

%
C

h
an

g
e

%
 L

ea
se

d
L

as
t 

Y
ea

r
%

 L
ea

se
d

1 
to

 3
M

o
n

th
4 

to
 6

M
o

n
th

Y
ea

r
M

o
n

th
T

o
ta

l L
as

t
Y

ea
r

T
o

ta
l T

h
is

Y
ea

r
7 

to
 1

2
M

o
n

th
12

+
M

o
n

th

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

M
o

n
th

60
0

61
0

62
0

63
0

64
0

65
0

66
0

67
0

L
e

as
e 

To
ta

l
To

ta
l T

h
is

 Y
e

a
r

To
ta

l L
a

st
 Y

e
a

r

T
o

ta
l

E
xp

ir
at

io
n

s
T

o
ta

l
R

en
ew

al
s

P
ag

e 
1

M
on

th
ly

 A
ct

iv
e 

Le
as

in
g 

R
ep

or
t

P
rin

te
d 

: 0
3/

01
/2

02
2 

10
:5

9:
20

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

3)
 

Pa
ge

 1
3 

of
 1

4
Ag

en
da

 It
em

 #
15

a(
3)

 
Pa

ge
 1

3 
of

 1
4



TH
IS

 P
AG

E 
LE

FT
 B

LA
N

K 
IN

TE
N

TI
O

N
AL

LY

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

15
a(

3)
 

Pa
ge

 1
4 

of
 1

4
Ag

en
da

 It
em

 #
15

a(
3)

 
Pa

ge
 1

4 
of

 1
4



OPEN MEETING 

REGULAR OPEN MEETING OF THE UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL 
ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Thursday, February 17, 2022 - 9:30 AM-11:30AM 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center (Virtual Meeting) 

24351 El Toro Road, Laguna Woods, CA 92637  

REPORT 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: Anthony Liberatore, Acting Director Diane Casey, Acting Director 
Maggie Blackwell 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS ABSENT: Reza Bastani, Cash Achrekar 

ADVISORS PRESENT: Dick Rader 

STAFF PRESENT: Robbi Doncost, Lauryn Varnum, Gavin Fogg, Richard DeLaFuente, Bart Mejia 

1. Call to Order

Chair Liberatore called the meeting to order at 9:30am. 

2. Acknowledgement of Media

Zoom platform via Granicus. 

3. Approval of Agenda

Approved by consensus. 

4. Approval of Meeting Report for December 16, 2021

Approved by consensus. 

5. Chair’s Remarks

None. 

6. Member Comments - (Items Not on the Agenda)

Acting Director Blackwell had questions regarding variance procedures, Chair Liberatore encouraged she 

wait for the variances to be heard before discussing the matter in depth.  

7. Manor Alterations Division Manager Update

Staff Officer Robbi Doncost reported that Manor Operations is fully operational and staffed, 

unfortunately a large amount of staff was out due to quarantine procedures. Inspectors have been 

Agenda Item #15b 
Page 1 of 4



 

 

 

 

   
 

temporarily reassigned to in-take operations, but there will likely be a backlog of approximately 5 days. 
Chair Liberatore inquired if an email communication can be sent to the community during periods of 
backlog.  

Consent:  

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by the 
Committee by one motion.  In the event that an item is removed from the Consent Calendar by members 
of the Committee, such item(s) shall be the subject of further discussion and action by the Committee. 

Status of Mutual Consents 

8. Monthly Mutual Consent Report 

Staff Officer Doncost summarized the report, explained the response time for all inquiries had returned 
to a 24-hour period, and standard permits were approved within approximately 5-10 business days.  

Variance Requests: 

A. Variance Request - 81-C Calle Aragon (Madrid, 4) Room Addition on the Existing Exclusive Area 
Front Patio, Bathroom Addition, and Enclosed Atrium 

Staff Officer Richard DeLaFuente summarized the report and answered questions clarifying the 
extension into exclusive-use common area. Mr. DeLaFuente confirmed that this variance will not 
encroach upon common area, and that it aligns with the current slab. The variance request was 
approved by consensus. 

B. Variance Request – 861-Q Ronda Mendoza (Castilla, HH08_1), Install (3) Exterior WiFi- Enabled 
Battery-Operated Security Cameras 

 
Mr. DeLaFuente read aloud two letters from neighbors disapproving of the proposed variance, and 
clarified that the staff has amended its position from recommending approval to neutrality. Acting 
Director Casey commented that the proposed system seems invasive to the privacy of the community. 
Acting Director Blackwell recalled that a previous resident had installed cameras, however they gave the 
feeling of an unsafe neighborhood and raised concerns over where the camera would be aimed. Advisor 
Rader commented that perhaps the Governing Docs Committee could consider the ramifications of this 
proposal.  
 
Member Myskzo presented his argument to the committee, including offering to provide photos of 
where the cameras would be aimed. Discussion ensued regarding the concern for setting a precedent 
within the community with cameras. Ultimately, the committee elected by consensus to defer the 
decision to the Governing Docs Committee.  
 
Acting Director Blackwell inquired about a specific variance discussed at the previous ACSC meeting. She 
inquired as to the process of alterations being resolve within a resale, and the grandfathering of in 
improper alterations. Staff Officer Gavin Fogg clarified that part of the resale inspection was to identify 

Agenda Item #15b 
Page 2 of 4



alterations out of compliance, but policies have changed over time. Mr. Fogg suggested a private off-line 
discussion to further answer any questions Acting Director Blackwell’s questions.  

Items for Discussion 

9. ACM: Legal Involvement Progress & Dual Mutual Involvement

Acting Director Blackwell asked for a summary of the current situation. Mr. Doncost explained that 
history of communications between the two mutuals regarding ACM policies, explaining that a meeting 
was attempted to have the Chair’s speak directly. The current procedure is able to revised if both 
mutual’s can create a mirrored process. Chair Liberatore pledged to contact United’s legal 
representation to discuss the mutual’s role/Manor Alteration’s role.  

10. Technology Update Automated Reminders & Permitless Alteration Receipts

Staff Officer Lauryn Varnum summarized the current technology updates, including the upcoming 
automated email reminders for members, and a fully digital permit system. The committee was very 
excited for the updates and looked forward to updates.  

11. City of Laguna Woods & Manor Alterations Meeting

Mr. Doncost explained the ongoing meetings between the City and Manor Alterations served as an open 
path of communication. The meetings include discussion of new policies and the effect on both entities, 
any communal changes, and updates on staffing changes. The committee asked to be kept abreast of 
the updates.  

Items for Future Discussion: 

12. No issues were raised.

Concluding Business: 

13. Committee Member Comments

Acting Director Blackwell inquired again about the same previous variance, with Mr. Fogg reiterating 
that the discussion should continue offline.  

14. Date of Next Meeting – Thursday March 17, 2022 9:30 AM
15. Adjournment – 10:50 AM

 X___________________________________________________ 

Anthony Liberatore, Chair 

Robbi Doncost, Staff Officer 

Telephone: (949) 268-2281  

Agenda Item #15b 
Page 3 of 4



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #15b 
Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item #15e 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item #15e 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item #15e 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item #15e 
Page 4 of 4


	5b - United Board Minutes 2022-02-08 Open (final-approved).pdf
	Blank Page

	11c(1) RESOLUTION Lien 1.pdf
	Blank Page

	11c(2) RESOLUTION Lien 2.pdf
	Blank Page

	11c(3) RESOLUTION Lien 3.pdf
	Blank Page

	11d - 880-B Deny landscape revision request_pavers outside of a sliding glass door_kw.pdf
	Blank Page

	11e - 81-C Variance - Staff Report.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	Staff recommends the United ACSC approve the request for a room addition on the existing exclusive area front patio, bathroom addition, and enclosed atrium, with the conditions stated in Appendix A.
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION

	81-C Variance - Room Addition - Attachment 2 - Application.pdf
	81-C Application
	LWCommittee

	Blank Page

	12b - Clutter Policy - Staff Report for Board 1-11-22.pdf
	14a Discuss and Consider Amendment to the Clutter Policy Endorsement 12-16-2021.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	15a(1) - United Charts and Script 2022-03-08 (combined).pdf
	United Financial Report Script 2022-1
	United Chair Report for the Board - Period 1
	Financial Report�Preliminary as of January 31, 2022
	Financial Report�Preliminary as of January 31, 2022
	Financial Report�Preliminary as of January 31, 2022
	Financial Report�Preliminary as of January 31, 2022
	Financial Report�Preliminary as of January 31, 2022
	Financial Report�Preliminary as of January 31, 2022
	Financial Report�Preliminary as of January 31, 2022
	Financial Report�Preliminary as of January 31, 2022
	Financial Report�Preliminary as of January 31, 2022
	Financial Report�Preliminary as of January 31, 2022


	15b - United ACSC - Meeting Report 22.2.17.pdf
	Blank Page

	15a(2) - United Finance Report 2022-02-22 OPEN - signed.pdf
	Blank Page

	15a(3) - Monthly Active Leasing Report_United February 2022.pdf
	Blank Page

	5a - United_Board_Minutes_Agenda_PREP_Meeting_2022-01-27_Open.pdf
	Blank Page

	12a - UNITED- Staff Report 729-D Ext of Time- 22.3.8.pdf
	729-D Resolution - United - 22.3.8.pdf
	Blank Page





